

"BOOK-ENTRY ONLY" NEW ISSUE RATINGS: Insured/Uninsured Moody's: Aaa/Aa2 Standard & Poor's: AAA/AA Fitch Ratings: AAA/AA-(See "RATINGS" herein)

In the opinion of Calfee, Halter & Griswold LLP and Lumpkin McCrary, LLP, Co-Bond Counsel, under existing law and assuming continuing compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). Further, interest on the Bonds and any profit made on their sale, exchange, transfer or other disposition are exempt from Ohio personal income tax, the Ohio corporation franchise tax (to the extent calculated on the net income basis) and income taxes imposed by municipalities and other political subdivisions in Ohio. Interest on the Bonds, as is the case with most other forms of interest on debt obligations, is not subject to the Ohio commercial activity tax imposed under Chapter 5751 of the Ohio Revised Code. Interest on the Bonds may be subject to certain federal taxes imposed on certain corporations, including the corporate alternative minimum tax on a portion of that interest, and certain taxpayers may have certain other adverse federal income tax consequences as a result of owning the Bonds. (For a more complete discussion of tax aspects, see "TAX MATTERS.")

\$210,000,000 STATE OF OHIO MAJOR NEW STATE INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT REVENUE BONDS SERIES 2007-1

Dated: Date of Delivery

Due: Serially, as shown on this inside cover

The Bonds are special obligations of the State of Ohio (the "State"), issued pursuant to the Trust Agreement, dated as of May 1, 1998, as amended (the "Original Trust Agreement"), between the State and U.S. Bank National Association, as successor trustee (the "Trustee"), and the Tenth Supplemental Trust Agreement, dated as of November 1, 2007 (the "Tenth Supplemental Trust Agreement"), between the State and the Trustee (collectively, the "Trust Agreement"). The Bonds are being issued for the purpose of paying costs of the Major New State Infrastructure Projects described herein (the "Projects"). The Ohio Director of Transportation (the "Director") has entered into a Certificate and Agreement with the Treasurer of State of the State of Ohio (the "Treasurer"), dated as of November 1, 2007 (the "Certificate and Agreement"), pursuant to which the Director has agreed that the Ohio Department of Transportation (the "Department") will make deposits with the Treasurer equal to the Bond Service Charges on the Bonds (the "Bond Service Charges") plus certain related costs primarily from Pledged Federal Highway Receipts (as defined herein).

Payment of the principal of and interest on the Insured Bonds (as defined herein) when due will be insured by a municipal bond insurance policy (the "Policy") to be issued by Financial Security Assurance Inc. simultaneously with the delivery of the Bonds. See "BOND INSURANCE."



Interest on the Bonds will be payable, from their date on June 15 and December 15, commencing June 15, 2008. The Bonds mature on June 15 of each year, as shown on the inside cover.

The Bonds are not subject to mandatory sinking fund or optional redemption prior to maturity as provided herein. For maturity prices and yields, see the inside cover.

The Bonds will be issued only as fully registered bonds in the denominations of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. The Bonds will be issued in a book-entry form, registered in the name of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC") or its nominee. There will be no distribution of the Bonds to the ultimate purchasers ("Book-Entry Interest Owners"). See "APPENDIX B – BOOK-ENTRY FORM" herein. Principal of the Bonds will be payable to the registered owner thereof (DTC or its nominee) at the designated corporate trust office of the Trustee. Interest on the Bonds will be payable by check or draft mailed by the Trustee or, under certain conditions, by wire transfer, to the registered owner as shown on the registration records maintained by the Trustee as bond registrar.

The Bonds are special obligations of the State, secured under the Trust Agreement solely by a pledge of the Pledged Receipts (as defined herein), and payable primarily from the deposits to be made by the Department under the Certificate and Agreement and certain funds held by the Trustee pursuant to the Trust Agreement. The obligation of the Department to make the deposits required under the Certificate and Agreement is subject to and dependent upon biennial appropriations being made to the Department for such purpose by the General Assembly of Ohio (the "General Assembly"). The failure of the General Assembly to so appropriate moneys to the Department will result in the termination of the Department's obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement, including the obligation to cause moneys to be deposited with the Treasurer sufficient for the payment of Bond Service Charges with respect to the Bonds. The Bonds do not represent or constitute a debt of the Treasurer, the Department or the State, or a pledge of the faith and credit of the State, or a pledge of the taxing power of the State, and the Holders and Book-Entry Interest Owners of the Bonds shall have no right to have moneys raised by taxation by the State obligated or pledged for the payment of Bond Service Charges.

THIS COVER PAGE CONTAINS CERTAIN INFORMATION FOR QUICK REFERENCE ONLY. IT IS NOT A SUMMARY OF THIS ISSUE. INVESTORS MUST READ THE ENTIRE OFFICIAL STATEMENT TO OBTAIN INFORMATION ESSENTIAL TO THE MAKING OF AN INFORMED INVESTMENT DECISION.

The Bonds are offered, subject to prior sale, when, as and if issued by the State and accepted by the Underwriters subject to approval of legality by Calfee, Halter & Griswold LLP and Lumpkin McCrary, LLP, Co-Bond Counsel. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriters by their co-counsel, Tucker Ellis & West LLP and Davis, Eoff & Elliott LLC. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Department and for the Treasurer by their counsel, the Attorney General of Ohio, Marc Dann. Public Financial Management, Inc., Cleveland, Ohio has acted as financial advisor to the Treasurer in connection with the offering of the Bonds. It is expected that delivery of the Bonds will be made to or upon the order of DTC in New York, New York on or about November 15, 2007, against payment therefor.

UBS Investment Bank

Banc of America Securities LLC KeyBanc Capital Markets SBK-Brooks Investment Corp.

DEPFA First Albany Securities LLC Merrill Lynch & Co.

Morgan Stanley
LC Fifth Third Securities, Inc.
NatCity Investments, Inc.
Siebert Brandford Shank & Co., LLC

\$210,000,000 STATE OF OHIO Major New State Infrastructure Project Revenue Bonds Series 2007-1

MATURITY SCHEDULE

		Interest					Interest		
Maturity	Principal Amount (\$)	<u>Rate</u> (%)	<u>Yield</u> (%)	CUSIP No.†	Maturity	Principal Amount (\$)	<u>Rate</u> (%)	<u>Yield</u> (%)	CUSIP No.†
<u>Maturity</u>	Amount (5)	(70)	(/0)	CUSII No.	<u>Maturity</u>	Amount (5)	(70)	(70)	110.
06/15/08	21,000,000	4.250	3.27	677581BR0	06/15/14+	\$9,175,000	4.000	3.71	677581CB4
06/15/09	21,000,000	4.000	3.36	677581BS8	06/15/14+	11,825,000	5.000	3.71	677581CC2
06/15/10	11,725,000	4.000	3.42	677581BT6	06/15/15+	1,285,000	4.000	3.80	677581CD0
06/15/10	9,275,000	4.500	3.42	677581BU3	06/15/15+	19,715,000	5.000	3.80	677581CE8
06/15/11	3,715,000	4.000	3.50	677581BV1	06/15/16+	1,560,000	4.000	3.89	677581CF5
06/15/11	17,285,000	5.000	3.50	677581BW9	06/15/16+	19,440,000	5.000	3.89	677581CG3
06/15/12+	9,810,000	4.000	3.56	677581BX7	06/15/17+	8,245,000	4.000	3.97	677581CJ7
06/15/12+	11,190,000	5.000	3.56	677581BY5	06/15/17+	9,755,000	5.000	3.97	677581CK4
06/15/13+	3,250,000	4.000	3.63	677581BZ2	06/15/17+	3,000,000	5.500	3.97	677581CH1
06/15/13+	17,750,000	5.000	3.63	677581CA6					

⁺ Payment of principal and interest on the Bonds maturing June 15, 2012 through June 15, 2017 (the "Insured Bonds") will be insured by a municipal bond insurance policy (the "Policy") to be issued by Financial Security Assurance Inc. ("Bond Insurer") simultaneously with the issuance of the Bonds.

The CUSIP number for a specific maturity is subject to being changed after the issuance of the Bonds as a result of the procurement of secondary market portfolio insurance or other similar enhancement by investors that is applicable to all or a portion of certain maturities of the Bonds.

[†] Copyright © 2006; American Bar Association. CUSIP data herein are approved by Standard's & Poor's CUSIP Service Bureau, a division of the McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. The CUSIP numbers listed above are being provided solely for the convenience of the Holders of the Bonds only at the time of issuance of the Bonds, and the State does not make any representation with respect to such numbers or undertake any responsibility for their accuracy now or at any time in the future.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

REGARDING THE USE OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT	iii
SELECTED SUMMARY STATEMENT	V
INTRODUCTION	1
DESCRIPTION OF BONDS	1
General	1
No Prior Redemption	1
Payment of Principal and Interest	
Outstanding Prior Bonds.	
ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS	3
DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS	3
PURPOSE OF THE BONDS	4
SECURITY FOR THE BONDS	
General	5
Deposits under the Certificate and Agreement and Related Budget Requirements	6
BOND INSURANCE	
SOURCES OF FUNDS FOR PAYMENT OF BONDS	
SUMMARY OF FEDERAL HIGHWAY FUNDING	10
The Federal Highway Administration and the Federal Highway Program	10
Sources of Funding for Federal Aid Highway Program	
Reauthorization of HTF Collections	
History	11
The HTF Balance	12
Current Operations	
Department use of Title 23 Moneys	
Air Quality Requirements	
Future Federal Highway Assistance to the State	
OHIO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION	
State Infrastructure Bank	21
THE CERTIFICATE AND AGREEMENT	
General	22
Terms of the Certificate and Agreement	
Payments and Pledges	
Legislative Appropriations	23
Further Covenants	24
Remedies	
Termination	25
Reinstatement	25
THE TRUST AGREEMENT	25
General	25
Security	26
Funds and Accounts	
Investment of Certain Funds	
Additional Bonds	28
Parity Obligations	
Further Covenants	
Events of Default and Remedies	

Waiver of Events of Default	33
Supplemental Trust Agreements	
Defeasance	34
Non-presentment of Bonds	34
Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays	35
Amendments to the General Bond Order and Trust Agreement	35
TRUSTEE	36
RIGHTS OF BOND INSURER	36
Consent of Financial Security	36
Claims upon the Policy and Payments by and to Financial Security	36
LITIGATION	38
RATINGS	
ELIGIBILITY UNDER OHIO LAW FOR INVESTMENT AND AS SECURITY	Y FOR THE
DEPOSIT OF PUBLIC MONEY	38
TAX MATTERS	39
Original Issue Discount and Original Issue Premium	40
CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS	41
UNDERWRITING	41
FINANCIAL ADVISOR	41
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE	41
CONCLUDING STATEMENT	44
GLOSSARY	45
APPENDIX A – FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION	
APPENDIX B – BOOK ENTRY FORM	B-1
APPENDIX C – SPECIMEN OF MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE POLICY	C-1

REGARDING THE USE OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT

This Official Statement does not constitute an offering of any security other than the original offering of the Bonds identified on the cover page of this Official Statement. No person has been authorized by the Treasurer, the Department, or the State to give any information or to make any representation, other than that contained in this Official Statement, and if given or made, such other information or representation not so authorized must not be relied upon as having been given or authorized by the Treasurer, the Department or the State. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, and there shall not be any sale of the Bonds by any person, in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful to make such offer, solicitation or sale.

The Underwriters have provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement: The Underwriters have reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, their respective responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriters do not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information. The inclusion of said sentence does not imply any such guarantee by any other party.

The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the State since the date hereof.

The Bonds will not be registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any state securities law, and will not be listed on any stock or other securities exchange. Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any other federal, state or other governmental entity or agency will have passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this Official Statement or approved the Bonds for sale.

All financial and other information presented herein has been provided by the State from its records, except for information expressly attributed to other sources, is intended to show recent historic information, and is not intended to indicate future or continuing trends in the financial position or other affairs of the State. No representation is made that past experience, as might be shown by such financial and other information, will necessarily continue or be repeated in the future.

References herein to provisions of Ohio law, whether codified in the Ohio Revised Code or uncodified, or of the Ohio Constitution, are references to such provisions as they presently exist. Any of those provisions may from time to time be amended, repealed or supplemented.

The information approved and provided by the State in this Official Statement is the information relating to the particular subjects provided by the State or State agencies for the purpose of this Official Statement. Reliance for such purpose should not be placed on any other information publicly provided in any format, including electronic, by any State agency for other purposes, including general information provided to the public or to portions of the public.

Other than with respect to information concerning Financial Security Assurance Inc. ("Financial Security" or "Bond Insurer") contained under the caption "Bond Insurance" and Exhibit C specimen "Municipal Bond Insurance Policy" herein, none of the information in this Official Statement has been supplied or verified by Financial Security and Financial Security makes no representation or warranty, express or implied, as to (i) the accuracy or completeness of such information; (ii) the validity of the Bonds; or (iii) the tax exempt status of the interest on the Bonds.

IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING OF THE BONDS, THE UNDERWRITERS MAY OVERALLOT OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICES OF THE BONDS AT LEVELS ABOVE THOSE WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.



OFFICIAL STATEMENT \$210,000,000 STATE OF OHIO

Major New State Infrastructure Project Revenue Bonds Series 2007-1

SELECTED SUMMARY STATEMENT

The following summary supplements certain of the information on the cover page and summarizes selected other information in this Official Statement relating to the Major New State Infrastructure Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2007-1 (the "Bonds") of the State of Ohio (the "State"). It is not intended as a substitute for the more detailed discussions in this Official Statement, to which reference should be made.

ISSUER. The State, acting by and through the Treasurer of State of Ohio (the "Treasurer").

AUTHORIZATION. The Bonds are being issued pursuant to the provisions of the Constitution of Ohio, particularly Section 13 of Article VIII thereof, Section 5531.10 of the Ohio Revised Code (the "Act"), the General Bond Order of the Treasurer and Series Bond Order No. 2007-1 of the Treasurer and the Trust Agreement, dated as of May 1, 1998, as amended (the "Original Trust Agreement"), between the State and U.S. Bank National Association, as successor trustee (the "Trustee"), and the Tenth Supplemental Trust Agreement, dated as of November 1, 2007 (the "Tenth Supplemental Trust Agreement" and, collectively with the Original Trust Agreement, the "Trust Agreement"), between the State and the Trustee. The Bonds are the eighth series of bonds issued under the Original Trust Agreement for the purpose of paying the costs of various highway and bridge projects within the State, including the Projects. See "PURPOSE OF THE BONDS."

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT. The Bonds are special obligations of the State issued under and pursuant to the Act and the Trust Agreement. The Bonds are payable primarily from and, together with the Additional Bonds, are equally and ratably secured by a pledge of the Pledged Receipts. Federal Title 23 Highway Funds received and to be received by the State ("Pledged Federal Highway Receipts") will be the primary source of Pledged Receipts. The Ohio Department of Transportation (the "Department") is required to make annual deposits with the Treasurer sufficient in amount to pay the Bond Service Charges with respect to the Bonds. See "THE CERTIFICATE AND AGREEMENT – Payments and Pledges." The rights to these moneys are assigned by the Treasurer to the Trustee to secure the payment of the Bonds. See "THE TRUST AGREEMENT – Security." Payment of principal and interest on the Bonds maturing June 15, 2012 through June 15, 2017 (the "Insured Bonds") will be insured by a municipal bond insurance policy (the "Policy") to be issued by Financial Security Assurance Inc. ("Bond Insurer"). See "BOND INSURANCE."

The Bonds are special obligations of the State, secured under the Trust Agreement solely by a pledge of the Pledged Receipts (as defined herein), and payable primarily from the deposits to be made by the Department under the Certificate and Agreement and certain funds held by the Trustee pursuant to the Trust Agreement. The obligation of the Department to make the deposits required under the Certificate and Agreement is subject to and dependent upon biennial appropriations being made to the Department for such purpose by the General Assembly of Ohio (the "General Assembly"). The failure of the General Assembly to so appropriate moneys to the Department will result in the termination of the Department's obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement, including the obligation to cause moneys to be deposited with the Treasurer sufficient for the payment of Bond Service Charges with respect to the Bonds. The Bonds do not represent or constitute a debt of the Treasurer, the Department or the State, or a pledge of the faith and credit of the State, or a pledge of the taxing power of the State, and the Holders and Book-Entry Interest Owners of the Bonds shall have no right to have moneys raised by taxation by the State obligated or pledged for the payment of Bond Service Charges. See "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS."

PURPOSE. The Bonds are being issued to pay the costs of State Infrastructure Projects as defined in Section 5531.10(A)(8) of the Ohio Revised Code (the "Projects"), and to pay costs of issuance. See "**PURPOSE OF THE BONDS**."

NO PRIOR REDEMPTION. The Bonds are not subject to optional or mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity.

INTEREST PAYMENT DATES. June 15 and December 15, commencing June 15, 2008.

DENOMINATION, REGISTRATION, DELIVERY DATE. \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof; book-entry-only at DTC; expected delivery on November 15, 2007.

ADDITIONAL BONDS AND PARITY OBLIGATIONS. One or more series of Additional Bonds are issuable under the Trust Agreement, for certain purposes permitted thereunder. Additional Bonds are on a parity with the Bonds, payable primarily from and secured by the Pledged Receipts except for bond service reserve accounts or Credit Support Instruments, if any, applicable only to a certain series of outstanding bonds. See "THE TRUST AGREEMENT – Additional Bonds." In addition, the Trust Agreement permits issuance of Parity Obligations, outside of the Trust Agreement that are payable from or secured by Pledged Federal Highway Receipts and which are not expressly subordinated to the Bonds. See "THE TRUST AGREEMENT - Parity Obligations." The issuance of Additional Bonds and incurrence of Parity Obligations is limited to the conditions set forth in the Trust Agreement. See "SOURCES OF FUNDS FOR PAYMENT OF BONDS," "THE CERTIFICATE AND AGREEMENT – Further Covenants" and "DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS."

TAX MATTERS. In the opinion of Calfee, Halter & Griswold LLP and Lumpkin McCrary, LLP, Co-Bond Counsel, under existing law and assuming continuing compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. (the "Code") Further, interest on the Bonds and any profit made on their sale, exchange, transfer or other disposition are exempt from Ohio personal income tax, the Ohio corporation franchise tax (to the extent calculated on the net income basis) and income taxes imposed by municipalities and other political subdivisions in Ohio. Interest on the Bonds, as is the case with most other forms of interest on debt obligations, is not subject to the Ohio commercial activity tax imposed under Chapter 5751 of the Ohio Revised Code. Interest on the Bonds may be subject to certain federal taxes imposed on certain corporations, including the corporate alternative minimum tax on a portion of that interest, and certain taxpayers may have certain other adverse federal income tax consequences as a result of owning the Bonds.

TRUSTEE. U.S. Bank, National Association.

BOND COUNSEL. Calfee, Halter & Griswold LLP and Lumpkin McCrary, LLP

UNDERWRITERS. The Underwriters shown on the cover (collectively, the "Underwriters"). The Bonds have been purchased by the Underwriters at a price of \$218,241,638.95.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR. Public Financial Management, Inc., Cleveland, Ohio.

Questions regarding this Official Statement or the Bonds should be directed to Jake Wozniak, Office of the Treasurer, 30 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3461, telephone (614) 466-3930.

INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement has been prepared to provide certain information in connection with the original issuance and sale of \$210,000,000 State of Ohio Major New State Infrastructure Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2007-1 (the "Bonds") to be issued for the purpose of (i) paying the costs of State Infrastructure Projects as defined in Section 5531.10(A)(8) of the Ohio Revised Code (the "Projects"), and (ii) paying the costs incident to the issuance of the Bonds. For further discussion of the purpose of the Bonds, see "PURPOSE OF THE BONDS."

This Introduction is not a summary of this Official Statement. It is only a brief description of and guide to, and is qualified by, more complete and detailed information contained elsewhere in this Official Statement and the documents summarized or described herein. A full review should be made of the entire Official Statement. The offering of Bonds to potential investors is made only by means of the entire Official Statement.

All financial and other information presented in this Official Statement has been provided by the State from its official records, except for information expressly attributed to other sources. The presentation of information, including tables of receipts from taxes and other sources, is intended to show recent historical information and is not intended to indicate future or continuing trends in the financial or other positions of the State. No representation is made that past experience, as might be shown by that financial and other information, will necessarily continue in the future.

Reference to provisions of Ohio law, whether codified in the Ohio Revised Code ("Revised Code") or uncodified, or of the Ohio Constitution, are to those provisions as now in effect. Those provisions may from time to time be amended, repealed or supplemented.

As used in this Official Statement, "Fiscal Year" means the State's Fiscal Year, currently the twelve-month period from July 1 through June 30. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in the text of this Official Statement are defined in the **GLOSSARY**. See "**GLOSSARY**."

This Official Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information contained herein is subject to change. This Official Statement and the continuing disclosure documents of the Treasurer are intended to be made available through one or more repositories. See "CONTINUING DISCLOSURE." Copies of the basic documentation relating to the Bonds, including the Original Trust Agreement, the Tenth Supplemental Trust Agreement, and the Certificate and Agreement are available from the Treasurer.

DESCRIPTION OF BONDS

General

The Bonds shall be dated the date of their initial issuance and delivery and shall bear interest from such date at the rates set forth on the inside cover page, payable on June 15 and December 15 of each year, commencing June 15, 2008, until maturity. The Bonds are being issued as fully registered bonds, without coupons, in the denomination of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.

The Bonds mature annually, on June 15 commencing June 15, 2008 as shown on the inside cover.

No Prior Redemption

The Bonds are not subject to optional or mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity.

Payment of Principal and Interest

The principal of and any premium on any Bond shall be payable when due upon presentation and surrender of that Bond at the designated corporate trust office of the Trustee or at the office of any paying agent designated for that purpose pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

The interest on any Bond due on each Interest Payment Date shall be paid by check or draft mailed to the person in whose name the Bond is registered at the close of business on the first day of the calendar month in which an Interest Payment Date applicable to the Bonds occurs (the "Regular Record Date"), at the address shown on the registration records kept by the Trustee as bond registrar. If any interest is not timely paid or duly provided for, the Trustee is required to establish a special record date (the "Special Record Date") for the payment of overdue interest to the Holders of Bonds as of that Special Record Date. Notice of the Special Record Date will be mailed to Holders of Bonds not more than 15 days and not less than 10 days prior to the Special Record Date.

With the approval of the Treasurer, the Trustee may enter into an agreement with DTC, or the nominee of DTC that is the Holder of a Bond in the custody of DTC, providing for the making of payments to DTC of principal of and interest and any premium on such Bond or any portion thereof (other than any payment of the entire unpaid principal amount of such Bond) at a place and in a manner (including the wire transfer of funds) that differs from that described in the prior paragraph, upon any conditions which shall be satisfactory to the Trustee and the Treasurer.

Outstanding Prior Bonds

The Bonds are the eighth series of bonds issued under the Original Trust Agreement for the purpose of paying the costs of various highway and bridge projects within the State, including the Projects. See "PURPOSE OF THE BONDS." In 1998, pursuant to the Original Trust Agreement and the First Supplemental Trust Agreement, dated as of May 1, 1998, between the Trustee, as successor trustee, and the State, the State issued the first series of bonds, its \$70,000,000 Ohio Major New State Infrastructure Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1998-1 (the "Series 1998-1 Bonds"). In 1999, the State issued \$20,000,000 State of Ohio Major New State Infrastructure Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1999-1 (the "Series 1999-1 Bonds"), which were issued pursuant to the Original Trust Agreement and the Second Supplemental Trust Agreement, dated as of August 1, 1999, between the Trustee, as successor trustee, and the State. In 2001, the State issued \$100,000,000 State of Ohio Major New State Infrastructure Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2001-1 (the "Series 2001-1 Bonds") which were issued pursuant to the Original Trust Agreement and the Third Supplemental Trust Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2001, between the Trustee, as successor trustee, and the State. In 2002, the State issued \$135,000,000 State of Ohio Major New State Infrastructure Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2002-1 (the "Series 2002-1 Bonds") which were issued pursuant to the Original Trust Agreement and the Fourth Supplemental Trust Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2002, between the Trustee, as successor trustee, and the State. Pursuant to the Original Trust Agreement and the Fifth Supplemental Trust Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2003, between the Trustee, as successor trustee, and the State, the State issued its \$113,765,000 State of Ohio Major New State Infrastructure Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2003-1 (the "Series 2003-1 Bonds"). Pursuant to the Original Trust Agreement and the Sixth Supplemental Trust Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2005, between the Trustee, as successor trustee, and the State, the State issued its \$99,270,000 Major New Infrastructure Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2005-1 (the "Series 2005-1 Bonds"). Pursuant to the Original Trust Agreement and the Eighth Supplemental Trust Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2006, between the Trustee, as successor trustee, and the State, the State issued its \$180,000,000 Major New Infrastructure Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2006-1 (the "Series 2006-1 Bonds").

The Series 1998-1 Bonds and the Series 1999-1 Bonds will be defeased using available funds in the Major New Project Debt Service Account prior to or simultaneously with the issuance of the Bonds and will no longer be considered outstanding under the Trust Agreement.

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

The following table sets forth the estimated sources and uses for the proceeds of the Bonds:

Sources:

Par Amount of Bonds Net Original Issue Premium	\$210,000,000.00 <u>9,145,486.95</u>
TOTAL SOURCES	<u>\$219,145,486.95</u>
Uses:	

Deposit to Infrastructure Bank Obligations Fund
Costs of Issuance (1)
Major New Project Debt Service Account

210,000,000.00
1,446,525.11
7,698,961.84

TOTAL USES <u>\$219,145,486.95</u>

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

The following table sets forth the annual debt service requirements for the Bonds, along with Additional Bonds outstanding as of the date of this Official Statement:

	Series 2007-1 Bonds				Additional Bonds (1)			
State Fiscal Year	<u>Principal</u>	<u>Interest</u>	<u>Total</u>	<u>Principal</u>	<u>Interest</u>	<u>Total</u>	Total Debt Service	
2008	\$21,000,000	\$5,607,860	\$26,607,860	\$70,440,000	\$17,149,283	\$87,589,283	\$114,197,143	
2009	21,000,000	8,720,975	29,720,975	70,760,000	14,054,643	84,814,643	114,535,618	
2010	21,000,000	7,880,975	28,880,975	58,585,000	10,773,273	69,358,273	98,239,248	
2011	21,000,000	6,994,600	27,994,600	42,035,000	7,796,364	49,831,364	77,825,964	
2012	21,000,000	5,981,750	26,981,750	28,165,000	6,071,790	34,236,790	61,218,540	
2013	21,000,000	5,029,850	26,029,850	28,595,000	4,836,053	33,431,053	59,460,903	
2014	21,000,000	4,012,350	25,012,350	29,075,000	3,259,588	32,334,588	57,346,938	
2015	21,000,000	3,054,100	24,054,100	29,600,000	2,203,838	31,803,838	55,857,938	
2016	21,000,000	2,016,950	23,016,950	20,675,000	555,463	21,230,463	44,247,413	
2017	21,000,000	982,550	21,982,550	0	0	0	21,982,550	
Total	\$210,000,000	\$50,281,960	\$260,281,960	\$377,930,000	\$66,700,291	\$444,630,291	\$704,912,252	

⁽¹⁾ Does not include Series 1998-1 Bonds and Series 1999-1 Bonds, which will be defeased prior to or simultaneously with the issuance of the Bonds.

⁽¹⁾ Includes Underwriters' discount, bond insurance premium, printing costs, rating agency fees, legal fees and other costs of issuance.

PURPOSE OF THE BONDS

The Bonds are being issued to finance various highway and bridge projects within the State (the "Projects"). The Projects to be financed with bond proceeds include (A) in Summit County on Interstate Route 77, widening the roadway to six lanes; (B) in Lucas County on Interstate Route 280, as part of the Maumee River Crossing Project, reconfiguring the trench; (C) on US 24 through Defiance County, construction of two additional lanes and reconstructing the existing two lanes; (D) on State Route 161 in Licking County, construction of a limited access highway from the New Albany bypass to just west of Simpson's Run; (E) on Interstate Route 480 in Cuyahoga County, a major rehabilitation from Tuxedo Avenue to the Valleyview bridge; (F) in Hamilton County on Interstate Route 275, widening and rehabilitation of the roadway, pavement and bridges; (G) in Cuyahoga County on Interstate Route 77, pavement rehabilitation from Oakes Road to Interstate Route 480 and adding a lane and bridge decks; (H) in Paulding and Defiance Counties, State Route 24, new construction of a 4-lane expressway on a new alignment; (I) in Butler and Warren Counties, rehabilitation of pavement and adding a median lane on Interstate Route 75 in both directions; (J) in Summit County, reconfiguring interchange ramps and southbound Interstate Route 271 lanes to provide access on State Route 8 by new ramps; (K) in Clark County on Interstate Route 70, adding lane, replacing existing pavement and rehabilitating 2 overhead structures; (L) in Montgomery County on Interstate Route 75, redesigning of the Dayton Expressway and Interstate Route 75 interchange to provide 3 continuous through lanes; (M) in Licking County, construction of new 4-lane facility on new alignment from just west of Simpson's Run to the existing 4-lane just west of Granville; (N) in Clinton County, relocation of State Route 73 north of Wilmington from U.S. Route 68 to U.S. Route 22 and clearing and grubbing; (O) in Henry County, construction of a 4 lane divided highway and a new interchange at State Route 109 and overpasses at TR-10 and CR-4A; (P) in Athens and Hocking Counties, construction of the Nelsonville By-Pass on State Route 33; and (Q) in Lucas County on Interstate Route 475, replacing 3 bridges at Douglas Road, Auburn Avenue and Central Avenue to accommodate widening. Additional Projects may be added or substituted for the Projects described above in accordance with the Act and the terms of the Certificate and Agreement. In addition, a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds will be used to pay certain costs incident to the issuance of the Bonds.

The Federal Highway Administration ("FHWA") has authorized or is expected by the Department to authorize the reimbursement of amounts used to pay Bond Service Charges related to financing each of the Projects as advance construction projects under Title 23 and has determined or is expected by the Department to determine that each of the Projects is eligible for federal funding under Title 23. The FHWA has agreed to make payments to the Department to reimburse the Department in amounts equal to the Debt Service on the Bonds, when due, through Fiscal Year 2008, and thereafter, in amounts equal to not less than 80% of the Bond Service Charges on the Bonds See "SUMMARY OF FEDERAL HIGHWAY PROGRAM - Current Operations -- Matching Requirements."

Additional Bonds may be issued in the future to finance the Projects and other highway construction projects. See "THE TRUST AGREEMENT – Additional Bonds." Included within the cost to complete the Projects are the cost of highway construction, including the cost of paving, grading, and drainage, the cost of replacing bridges, and the cost of landscaping and removing materials from the construction zone. The Projects are not pledged or mortgaged as security for the Bonds nor will the Trustee have the right to take possession of or operate the Projects upon a default under or termination of the Department's obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement. See "THE CERTIFICATE AND AGREEMENT – Term of the Certificate and Agreement."

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS

General

The Bonds are special obligations of the State issued under and pursuant to the Act and the Trust Agreement. The Bonds are payable primarily from, and together with the Additional Bonds, are equally and ratably secured by, a pledge of the Pledged Receipts. Federal Title 23 Highway Funds received and to be received by the State (Pledged Federal Highway Receipts) will be the primary source of Pledged Receipts.

Pledged Receipts means (a) accrued interest received from the sale of Obligations; (b) all amounts standing to the credit of the State Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bond Service Fund including without limitation all amounts credited to the Major New Project Debt Service Account and any other accounts and subaccounts in the State Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bond Service Fund, other than amounts in an account or subaccount which are limited to certain series of Bonds or Parity Obligations and other than any moneys in the State Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bond Service Fund raised by taxation by the State; (c) any gifts, grants, donations and pledges, and receipts therefrom, received by the State available for the payment of Bond Service Charges, to the extent not previously pledged and to the extent not prohibited by the terms of such gifts, grants donations or pledges; (d) any amounts on deposit in the State Infrastructure Bank created pursuant to Section 5531.09 of the Ohio Revised Code constituting Pledged Federal Highway Receipts, excepting the portion thereof to be deposited in the Administrative Expense Fund, the Infrastructure Bank Obligations Fund, the Rebate Fund or an account or subaccount created pursuant to Section 9 of the General Bond Order, as provided in the General Bond Order or in any Series Bond Order; (e) other amounts in the State Infrastructure Bank which are hereafter pledged to the payment of Bond Service Charges by a Series Bond Order; and (f) any other moneys accruing to the State from sources described in Section 5531.10(A)(6) of the Ohio Revised Code, which are hereafter pledged to the payment of Bond Service Charges by a Series Bond Order. If the amounts standing to the credit of the State Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bond Service Fund and available monies in the State Infrastructure Bank pledged to the payment of Bond Service Charges are insufficient for the payment of Bond Service Charges, "Pledged Receipts" also means all other Pledged Federal Highway Receipts, excepting the portion thereof to be deposited in the Infrastructure Bank Obligations Fund or an account or subaccount created pursuant to Section 9 of the General Bond Order as provided in any General Bond Order or in any Series Bond Order.

Pledged Federal Highway Receipts include all moneys apportioned by the Secretary of Transportation under the provisions of Title 23 of the United States Code, as amended, or any successor legislation, or any other federal law relating to federal aid for highways and to be received as a grant by the State, to the extent that the State is not prohibited by federal or State law from using such moneys to pay Bond Service Charges. A proposed Ninth Supplemental Trust Agreement would amend the definition of Pledged Federal Highway Receipts to exclude moneys on deposit in the State Infrastructure Bank constituting moneys received as debt service payments or other repayments in respect of loans from the State Infrastructure Bank. This amendment will become effective upon the issuance of the Bonds when the Holders of a majority of the aggregate principal amount of Bonds and Additional Bonds outstanding shall have consented to such amendment. By purchasing a Bond, a Holder gives its irrevocable consent to the proposed Ninth Supplemental Trust Agreement and the amendments to the Trust Agreement and the General Bond Order effected therein. Concurrently with the issuance of its Policy on the Insured Bonds, Bond Insurer will irrevocably consent to the proposed Ninth Supplemental Trust Agreement on behalf of the Holders of the Insured Bonds.

The obligations of the Department to cause moneys to be deposited with the Treasurer for the payment of Bond Service Charges and to perform other obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement are subject to and dependent upon biennial appropriations being made to the Department by the General Assembly for such purposes. If the General Assembly fails to appropriate moneys to enable the Department to perform its obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement, those obligations of the Department under the

Certificate and Agreement will terminate. The General Assembly may not, under provisions of the Ohio Constitution, make appropriations for a period longer than two years.

Pursuant to Amended Substitute H.B. No. 67 and Amended Substitute H.B. No. 119 (the Department's current budget bills) the Director of Budget and Management may approve requests of the Department for transfer of various appropriations within a budget period. Transfers of appropriations may be made upon the written request of the Director of Transportation and with the approval of the Director of Budget and Management. This transfer authority is intended to provide for emergency situations and flexibility to meet unforeseen conditions that could arise during the budget period. It is also intended to allow the Department to optimize the use of variable resources and adjust to circumstances affecting the obligation and expenditure of federal funds.

While the Treasurer and the Department expect that the General Assembly will, for each State fiscal biennium, continue to appropriate amounts to the Department sufficient to meet its obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement to the Treasurer, consistent with the State budget, the General Assembly is under no legal obligation to make such appropriations. The Bonds are special obligations of the State payable primarily from and secured solely by the Pledged Receipts under the Trust Agreement.

The Bonds do not represent or constitute a debt of the Treasurer, the Department, the State, or of any political subdivision thereof, nor a pledge of the faith and credit of the State, or any political subdivision thereof. The Holders and Book-Entry Interest Owners of the Bonds will not have the right to have excises or taxes levied by the General Assembly for the payment of the Bond Service Charges on the Bonds, and those Holders and Book-Entry Interest Owners will not have the right to have moneys raised by taxation by the State obligated or pledged for the payment of Bond Service Charges. The Projects are not pledged or mortgaged as security for the Bonds and the Trustee will not have the right to take possession of or operate all or any portion of the Projects upon default under or termination of the Certificate and Agreement.

The Trust Agreement provides for the appointment of a receiver to recover and administer the Pledged Receipts upon the occurrence of certain Events of Default, but the right to a receiver under Ohio law is discretionary with the court as equitable principles may dictate. The appointment of a receiver may not, accordingly, be available as a remedy for the Trustee or the Holders of the Bonds. Moreover, the Act withholds from any receiver the power to pledge additional revenues or income of the Treasurer to the payment of the Bond Service Charges and excludes the power to take possession of, mortgage, or cause the sale or other disposition of any State Infrastructure Project.

Deposits under the Certificate and Agreement and Related Budget Requirements

The Bonds are special obligations of the State payable primarily from annual deposits to be made by the Department with the Treasurer under the Certificate and Agreement. The Certificate and Agreement requires that with respect to any Federal Fiscal Year for which moneys constituting Pledged Federal Highway Receipts are available, the Department will cause to be deposited from such moneys to the State Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bond Service Fund, for credit to the appropriate account thereof, an amount equal to all Bond Service Charges payable on the Bonds and Additional Bonds, and all debt service due on Parity Obligations for such Federal Fiscal Year, prior to any other payment to be made from such moneys during that Federal Fiscal Year; and, in all events not later than 15 days after the first day Pledged Federal Highway Receipts are available for such Federal Fiscal Year. In the event the Bond Service Charges due on any Interest Payment Date are not so deposited at least 45 days prior to such Interest Payment Date, the Director has covenanted and agreed in the Certificate and Agreement to cause to be paid to the Treasurer from any moneys lawfully available therefor, upon invoice from the Treasurer, on or before the fifth Business Day immediately preceding such Interest Payment Date an amount equal to the Bond Service Charges due on the respective Bonds on the applicable Interest Payment Date plus (a) such sum or sums as shall be necessary to maintain any required reserve in a bond service reserve account, and (b) such sum or sums, if any, as shall be necessary to purchase any Bonds which the Treasurer is obligated to purchase.

The Department and the Treasurer have agreed to cause the deposit in the Major New Project Debt Service Account maintained by the Trustee, at least one Business Day prior to each Interest Payment Date, the amount of Bond Service Charges payable on such Interest Payment Date.

The obligations of the Department to cause moneys to be deposited with the Treasurer for the payment of Bond Service Charges and to perform other obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement are subject to and dependent upon biennial appropriations being made by the General Assembly to the Department for such purposes. If the General Assembly fails to appropriate moneys to enable the Department to perform its obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement, those obligations of the Department under the Certificate and Agreement will terminate. The General Assembly may not, under the provisions of the Ohio Constitution, make appropriations for a period longer than two years. While the Treasurer and the Department expect that the General Assembly will, for each State fiscal biennium, continue to appropriate amounts to the Department sufficient to enable the Department to meet its obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement to the Treasurer, the General Assembly is under no obligation to make such appropriations.

The obligations of the Department involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement expire no later than the end of each State fiscal biennium (currently June 30 of each odd-numbered year) unless the General Assembly has appropriated moneys for the purpose of enabling the Department to meet those obligations for the next succeeding State fiscal biennium.

The Bonds are special obligations of the State issued by the Treasurer payable primarily from and secured solely by the Pledged Receipts under the Trust Agreement. The Bonds do not represent or constitute a debt of the Treasurer, the State, the Department, or of any political subdivision thereof, nor a pledge of the faith and credit of the State or any political subdivision thereof. The Holders and Book-Entry Interest Owners of the Bonds will have no right to have excises or taxes levied by the General Assembly for the payment of the Bond Service Charges on the Bonds, and those Holders and Book-Entry Interest Owners shall have no right to have moneys raised by taxation by the State obligated or pledged for the payment of Bond Service Charges. The Projects are not pledged or mortgaged as security for the Bonds and the Trustee will not have the right to take possession of or operate any portion of the Projects upon a default under or termination of the Certificate and Agreement.

The General Assembly has appropriated \$124,237,200 and \$158,288,500 for State Fiscal Years 2008 and 2009, respectively, to the Department for the purpose of enabling the Department to meet its obligations with respect to Bond Service Charges on the Series 1998-1 Bonds, the Series 1999-1 Bonds, the Series 2001-1 Bonds, the Series 2002-1 Bonds, the Series 2003-1 Bonds, the Series 2006-1 Bonds, the Bonds and any future Additional Bonds. The Series 1998-1 Bonds and the Series 1999-1 Bonds will be defeased using available funds from such appropriations prior to or simultaneously with the issuance of the Bonds.

BOND INSURANCE

Bond Insurance Policy

Concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, Financial Security Assurance Inc. ("Financial Security" or "Bond Insurer") will issue its Municipal Bond Insurance Policy for the Insured Bonds (the "Policy"). The Policy guarantees the scheduled payment of principal of and interest on the Insured Bonds when due as set forth in the form of the Policy included as an exhibit to this Official Statement.

The Policy is not covered by any insurance security or guaranty fund established under New York, California, Connecticut or Florida insurance law.

Financial Security Assurance Inc.

Financial Security is a New York domiciled financial guaranty insurance company and a wholly owned subsidiary of Financial Security Assurance Holdings Ltd. ("Holdings"). Holdings is an indirect subsidiary of Dexia, S.A., a publicly held Belgian corporation, and of Dexia Credit Local, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Dexia, S.A. Dexia, S.A., through its bank subsidiaries, is primarily engaged in the business of public finance, banking and asset management in France, Belgium and other European countries. No shareholder of Holdings or Financial Security is liable for the obligations of Financial Security.

At June 30, 2007, Financial Security's combined policyholders' surplus and contingency reserves were approximately \$2,642,612,000 and its total net unearned premium reserve was approximately \$2,116,401,000 in accordance with statutory accounting principles. At June 30, 2007, Financial Security's consolidated shareholder's equity was approximately \$3,072,828,000 and its total net unearned premium reserve was approximately \$1,660,356,000 in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

The consolidated financial statements of Financial Security included in, or as exhibits to, the annual and quarterly reports filed after December 31, 2005 by Holdings with the Securities and Exchange Commission are hereby incorporated by reference into this Official Statement. All financial statements of Financial Security included in, or as exhibits to, documents filed by Holdings pursuant to Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 after the date of this Official Statement and before the termination of the offering of the Bonds shall be deemed incorporated by reference into this Official Statement. Copies of materials incorporated by reference will be provided upon request to Financial Security Assurance Inc.: 31 West 52nd Street, New York, New York 10019, Attention: Communications Department (telephone (212) 826-0100).

The Policy does not protect investors against changes in market value of the Insured Bonds, which market value may be impaired as a result of changes in prevailing interest rates, changes in applicable ratings or other causes. Financial Security makes no representation regarding the Insured Bonds or the advisability of investing in the Insured Bonds. Financial Security makes no representation regarding the Official Statement, nor has it participated in the preparation thereof, except that Financial Security has provided to the State the information presented under this caption for inclusion in the Official Statement.

SOURCES OF FUNDS FOR PAYMENT OF BONDS

The Certificate and Agreement requires the Department to make annual deposits to the Treasurer sufficient in amount to pay the Bond Service Charges with respect to the Bonds. See "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Deposits under the Certificate and Agreement and Related Budget Requirements," and "THE CERTIFICATE AND AGREEMENT – Payments and Pledges." In the Trust Agreement, the Treasurer has assigned its rights to the moneys paid by the Department under the Certificate and Agreement to the Trustee to secure the payment of the Bonds. See "THE TRUST AGREEMENT – Security."

The Projects were included by the Department in its Statewide Transportation Improvement Plan (the "STIP") which was submitted to the United States Department of Transportation.

The federal government has in place various programs which provide for annual grants to the states for aid in the construction of highways (the "Title 23 Moneys"). The Title 23 Moneys received by the State are the sole source of the Pledged Federal Highway Receipts. See "SECURITY FOR THE

BONDS." The Department intends to use future Title 23 Moneys received by it as the primary source of moneys to meet its obligation to pay Bond Service Charges.

The following table sets forth the amount of Title 23 Moneys made available to the Ohio Department of Transportation by (1) appropriation and (2) obligation authority during each of the Federal Fiscal Years 2000 through and including 2007. See "SUMMARY OF FEDERAL HIGHWAY FUNDING – Current Operations" for an explanation of "obligation authority."

Title 23	Moneys
----------	--------

Appropriation	Obligation Authority
\$1,004,000,000	\$827,000,000
\$1,070,000,000	\$962,000,000
\$1,076,000,000	\$1,029,000,000
\$987,000,000	\$1,016,000,000
\$1,219,000,000	\$1,109,000,000
\$1,358,000,000	\$1,232,000,000
\$1,335,000,000	\$1,336,000,000
\$1,504,000,000	\$1,416,000,000
	\$1,004,000,000 \$1,070,000,000 \$1,076,000,000 \$987,000,000 \$1,219,000,000 \$1,358,000,000 \$1,335,000,000

^{*}Estimated by the Department.

The amounts shown in the table above include approximately \$8 million on average annually from Federal Fiscal Years 2000-2004, \$139 million in Federal Fiscal Year 2005 and \$52 million Federal Fiscal Year 2006, and \$89 million in Federal Fiscal Year 2007 of Title 23 money appropriated for reimbursement of emergency funding expenses. The increase in emergency funding for Federal Fiscal Year 2005 is due to four major flood events in East and Southeast Ohio.

The following table sets forth the amount of Title 23 Moneys actually received by the Department during each of the State Fiscal Years 2000 through and including 2007:

Title 23 Moneys

State Fiscal Year (June 30)	Received
2000	\$651,561,000
2001	\$862,257,000
2002	\$934,328,000
2003	\$918,426,000
2004	\$899,710,000
2005	\$1,050,601,000
2006	\$1,282,927,000
2007	\$1,273,805,000

Amounts shown in the table above include approximately \$8 million on average annually in State Fiscal Years 2000-2004, \$42 million in 2005, \$37 million in 2006 and \$64 million in 2007 of Title 23 money received for emergency funding.

For information relating to projected amounts of Title 23 Moneys expected to be received by the Department for future Federal Fiscal Years, see "SUMMARY OF FEDERAL HIGHWAY FUNDING – Future Federal Highway Assistance to the State."

As a practical matter, since Title 23 Moneys are paid by the federal government as reimbursements of payments made by the State in respect of Bond Service Charges, the Department typically uses appropriations from motor vehicle fuel taxes provided by the General Assembly for its deposits to the Treasurer. Such taxes are <u>not</u> pledged under the Trust Agreement to pay Bond Service Charges on the Bonds; however, the Certificate and Agreement provides that in any Federal Fiscal Year, Title 23 moneys may not be used for any purpose other than paying Bond Service Charges on the Bonds

and Additional Bonds and payment of debt service on Parity Obligations until sufficient amounts are on deposit to pay such amounts. See "CERTIFICATE AND AGREEMENT -- Further Covenants."

SUMMARY OF FEDERAL HIGHWAY FUNDING

The Federal Highway Administration and the Federal Highway Program

The Federal Highway Administration (the "FHWA"), a unit of the United States Department of Transportation ("US DOT"), administers the Federal-Aid Highway Program (the "Highway Program"), created by the Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1956, through which the federal government reimburses states for a portion of approved highway projects. The Highway Program is an "umbrella" term that encompasses most of the federal programs providing highway funds to the states. The major funding for the Highway Program is made available in six core programs: the Interstate Maintenance Program, the Highway Bridge Replacement and Rehabilitation Program, the National Highway System Program, the Surface Transportation Program, the Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Program and the Equity Bonus Program (formerly the Minimum Guarantee Program).

The Highway Program is a reimbursement program. Once projects are approved by FHWA and funds are obligated, the federal government makes payments to the states for costs as they are incurred on projects, which may include debt service on obligations issued to finance a project. With few exceptions, the federal government does not pay for the entire cost of a federal-aid project. Federal reimbursements are typically to be matched with state and/or local funds. The maximum federal share is specified in the federal legislation authorizing the program. Most projects have an 80 percent federal share, while Interstate construction and maintenance projects typically have been funded with a 90 percent federal share. Federal-aid highways are under the administrative control of the state or local government responsible for their operation and maintenance.

Funding under the Highway Program is provided to states through a multi-step funding cycle that includes: (1) multi-year authorization by Congress of the funding for various highway programs; (2) apportionment and allocation of funds to the states each Federal Fiscal Year according to statutory formulas or, for some funding categories, through administrative action; (3) obligation of funds, which is the federal government's legal commitment (or promise) to pay or reimburse states for the federal share of a project's eligible costs; (4) appropriations by Congress specifying the amount of funds available for the year to liquidate obligations; (5) program implementation which covers the programming and authorization phases; and (6) reimbursement by the federal government of the eligible project costs. Each of these steps is described in more detail under "Current Operations".

The FHWA administers payments to states under the Highway Program through the Highway Trust Fund (the "HTF") created by the Highway Revenue Act of 1956. Funded by the collection of federally-imposed motor vehicle user fees, primarily fuel taxes, the HTF is a dedicated fund with dedicated revenues that are held in trust for reimbursement of the states' costs of transportation projects, including highway projects.

Current federal law requires that the Secretary of the Treasury, not less frequently than once in each calendar quarter, after consultation with the Secretary of Transportation, estimate -

- (A) the amount which would (but for this provision) be the unfunded highway authorizations at the close of the next fiscal year, and
- (B) the net highway receipts for the 24-month period beginning at the close of such fiscal year.

If the estimated amount of unfunded highway authorizations at the close of the next fiscal year exceed the estimated net highway receipts for the 24-month period that begins at the close of that next fiscal year, the Secretary of Transportation must determine the percentage that such an excess (the "Excess Percentage") is of the amount authorized to be appropriated from the HTF for the fiscal year for

apportionment to the states. The Secretary must then reduce the apportionment to each state by the amount equal to such Excess Percentage multiplied by the original apportionment to such state. This provision is commonly referred to as the "Byrd amendment," or "Byrd test."

As a result, unlike most federal programs, because funding is provided through trust-funded contract authority rather than appropriated budget authority, the flow of federal funding to states for highway projects does not depend on timely appropriation of revenues by Congress.

The terms and conditions of participation in the Highway Program as described herein are subject to change at the discretion of Congress. There can be no assurance that the laws and regulations now governing the Highway Program will not be changed in the future in a manner that may adversely affect the ability of the State to receive adequate funds to repay the Bonds.

Sources of Funding for Federal Aid Highway Program

The primary source of federal government funding of highways is the HTF. Federal motor fuel taxes are the major source of income into the HTF. The HTF is composed of the highway account, which funds highway and intermodal programs (the "Highway Account"), and the mass transit account, which funds mass transit programs (the "Mass Transit Account"). Currently, the Highway Account receives approximately 84 percent of gasoline tax revenues and about 88 percent of diesel fuel tax revenues, with the remainder of such revenues deposited in the Mass Transit Account.

In Federal Fiscal Year 2006, tax revenues brought in \$40.1 billion to the HTF, with \$35.1 billion directed to the Highway Account and \$5.0 billion directed to the Mass Transit Account (before refunds and fund transfers). The primary source of funding into the HTF is 15.44 cents out of the current 18.4 cents per gallon Federal tax on gasoline. It is estimated that each cent per gallon of the Federal motor fuel tax rate produces about \$1.3 billion in revenues annually.

Reauthorization of HTF Collections

Collection of HTF taxes ("HTF Collections"), like the Highway Program itself, must periodically be reauthorized by Congress. Historically, the HTF and its constituent taxes have been authorized to operate for limited periods of time. Originally, the HTF was authorized through June 1972; it has been reauthorized several times. Most recently, the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Uses ("SAFETEA-LU"), enacted on August 10, 2005, further extended the Highway Program through September 30, 2009 and the transfer of taxes to the HTF through September 30, 2011.

History

The Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1956 was one of a long series of authorizing statutes for the Highway Program. Extensions of the Federal-Aid Highway Act were passed in 1958, 1959, 1960, 1961, 1962, 1964, 1966, 1968, 1970, 1973, 1974, and 1976. The 1982 Surface Transportation Assistance Act ("STAA") made notable changes to the Highway Program, and began the multi-year (i.e., four or more years) authorizing process. STAA also guaranteed each state a minimum 85 percent return on the money paid in by users purchasing fuel in the state. In 1991, the Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991 ("ISTEA") broadened the focus of the Highway Program, changed its structure significantly and created several new funding categories. ISTEA also gave state and local governments far greater flexibility in determining their transportation infrastructure priorities, whether transit or highways, and for the first time allowed significant flexibility to redirect federal revenues among programs. In each case, the statute was known as the Federal-Aid Highway Act.

The National Highway System Designation Act of 1995 (the "NHS Act") fulfilled an ISTEA mandate by designating the National Highway System to include the Interstate System as well as other roads important to the nation's economy, defense, and mobility. The NHS Act made several changes

affecting the financing of federal-aid highway projects, including advance construction procedures ("Advance Construction").

In 1998, the Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century ("TEA-21") extended the authorization of the Highway Program through September 30, 2003. Under TEA-21, average annual authorizations to the states for Federal Fiscal Year 1998 through Federal Fiscal Year 2003 were approximately \$27 billion. TEA-21 increased equity protections by assuring each state at least a 90.5 percent return on its collections for the HTF. Under TEA-21, HTF revenues were to be spent on transportation-related improvements rather than allowed to accumulate into surpluses. 12 short-term extensions of TEA-21 were signed into law after September 30, 2003, ensuring continuation of the Highway Program until the enactment of SAFETEA-LU.

On July 29, 2005, Congress passed, and on August 10, 2005, the President signed, SAFETEA-LU, an approximately \$286 billion reauthorization of the Highway Program and federal mass transit programs. SAFETEA-LU extended the authorization of the Highway Program through September 30, 2009. Under SAFETEA-LU, average annual apportionments (contract authority) to the states for Federal Fiscal Year 2005 through Federal Fiscal Year 2009 are expected to be approximately \$37 billion, an increase of approximately 38 percent over TEA-21 levels. SAFETEA-LU increases equity protections by assuring each state at least a 92 percent return on its collections for the HTF by Federal Fiscal Year 2008 and provides that states will receive at least 19 percent initially, and increasing each year, more over the new authorization period than over the original six years of TEA-21. SAFETEA-LU continues the TEA-21 requirement that HTF revenues, including revenues in excess of budget predictions, remain within the HTF and be spent on transportation-related improvements.

On February 14, 2007, Congress passed full Federal Fiscal Year 2007 appropriations bills for transportation as House Joint Resolution 20 ("H.J. Res. 20"). H.J. Res. 20 funds federal transportation programs, including those with payments pledged to secure the Bonds, at the levels called for in SAFETEA-LU, including \$39.1 billion for the Highway Program or \$3.5 billion over Federal Fiscal Year 2006 levels. H.J. Res. 20 was signed into law by the President on February 15, 2007, as P.L. 110-005.

The HTF Balance

Since 1956, the Highway Account of the HTF has accumulated a surplus of revenues because more revenues have been generated for the Highway Account through collections and interest income than have been distributed to states under the Highway Program. The balance of the HTF at the end of Federal Fiscal Year 2006 was \$13.4 billion. Of that \$13.4 billion, \$7.6 billion was credited to the Highway Account and \$5.8 billion was credited to the Mass Transit Account. The HTF is required under current federal law to maintain a positive balance to ensure that prior commitments for federal revenues can be met. This requirement allows states the flexibility to earn and receive reimbursement revenues for up to four years after federal funds first were obligated.

The Congressional Budget Office ("CBO"), in Congressional Testimony of March 27, 2007, reported that if Congress adheres to the highway and safety spending levels authorized in SAFETEA-LU, absent other measures, there will be a deficit in the Highway Account of the HTF at the end of Federal Fiscal Year 2009 in the amount of \$1.7 billion.

Current Operations

The present Highway Program continues to reimburse a large percentage of state expenditures for approved transportation projects. The financial assurance provided by the Highway Program is unusual, among federal programs, in that:

• the Highway Program is based on dedicated revenues, from a user-tax source, deposited in a dedicated trust fund (the HTF);

- the budget and contract authority, as described in Step 2 below, of the FHWA is established by a multi-year authorization act rather than annually through appropriation acts; and
- contract authority is not at risk during the annual appropriations process (as budget authority is in most other federal programs), although an appropriations act is required to liquidate obligations.

The process for reimbursing state expenditures may be summarized in three steps: Step 1, Authorization; Step 2, Obligation; and Step 3, Program Implementation.

Step 1, Authorization, is the most critical step in establishing overall spending authority for federal highway funding. Authorizing legislation extends the life of the Highway Program and HTF collections, sets Highway Program objectives and provides formulas for determining the distribution or apportionment of available resources among the states. The existence of the dedicated revenues in the Highway Account of the HTF and the existence of multi-year contract authorizations are designed to help make available a predictable and uninterrupted flow of reimbursements to the states. The risk of contract authority lapsing between authorizing acts is minimal since sufficient unobligated balances generally exist that cover gaps in coverage between multi-year reauthorization acts.

Step 2, Obligation, is the process through which states make use of, or "obligate," the contract authority that has been apportioned or allocated to them in Step 1. Congress typically limits the amount of obligation authority ("OA") that states may use annually. To whatever extent that a state's OA is set below its authorization, the unobligated balance for that state is increased. These unobligated balances provide available funds, from which the FHWA allows states to draw, when there is a lapse between authorization acts. Under current law the unobligated balances do not otherwise entitle the states to additional funds.

Step 3, Program Implementation, leads to actual receipt of federal funds by states. Program implementation methods vary state-by-state. States are permitted to make use of Advance Construction ("A/C") and partial conversion of A/C to obligate varying amounts of federal funds to an eligible project from Federal Fiscal Year to Federal Fiscal Year, depending on how much of the state's OA is available from the Highway Program and is desired for such use by the state.

Step 1: Authorization

The first step is the multi-year authorizing legislation. Such highway authorization acts:

- establish the taxes that fund the HTF and extend their life (reauthorization);
- establish the specific programs and procedures through which states receive federal financial assistance for their highway programs; and
- set upper limits on funding for specific programs and for the overall Highway Program.

Multi-Year Authorization Acts. As noted above, the modern Highway Program periodically has been reauthorized on a multi-year basis by authorization acts, through which Congress influences the level of federal involvement in state highway program activities. Annual appropriations acts then establish any limits on the amount of federal funds that the FHWA may obligate to states in a given year.

Budget and Contract Authority. All federal programs require budget and contract authority before revenues may be committed and spent. Normally this authority is provided through a two-step process, with authorizing legislation describing the purpose for a specific program and setting a proposed level of spending, and appropriations acts providing the budget authority or legal ability to spend federal revenues. Appropriations are often for a lower amount than that set by authorizations. The Highway Program combines these two steps, with authorizing legislation providing to the United States Secretary of Transportation contract authority or the legal ability to enter into binding contracts with the state transportation departments ("DOTs") and other bodies specified in the Highway Program.

Contract authority provides state DOTs with assurance about the level of future federal revenues that will be available. This, in turn, makes it easier to plan and execute multi-year construction projects. As a result of contract authority and the collection of user taxes into the dedicated HTF, the formal appropriations by Congress of revenues on an annual basis generally has been noncontroversial. Constraints arising from the annual appropriations process are described in Step 2 below.

<u>Lapsing of Authorization</u>. All federal programs must be authorized through enacted legislation that defines the programs and establishes maximum funding levels, and for most programs annual appropriations acts are necessary to create budget authority. For most federal domestic discretionary programs, a lapsed authorization may have little or no effect on a program, so long as revenues are appropriated. For the Highway Program, the consequences of lapsed authorization, caused when Congress fails to enact reauthorization legislation, are somewhat different. While Congress may pass interim legislation, the existence of contract authority and a dedicated revenue stream means that the FHWA usually can continue to provide OA by administrative action.

Though recent federal surface transportation legislation has authorized the Federal-Aid Highway Act for four to six years at a time, there occasionally have been periods in which the previous authorizing legislation had expired and the future legislation had yet to be enacted. In such circumstances, Congress and/or the FHWA have found ways to avoid disruptions to state highway programs and have been able to maintain the flow of federal revenues to states. Two mechanisms in particular have kept revenues flowing:

- Access to Unobligated Balances. The 1987 Surface Transportation and Uniform Relocation Assistance Act ("STURAA") expired on September 30, 1991, and ISTEA was not enacted until December 18, 1991. The FHWA was able to act administratively to keep federal-aid funding flowing because states could use their unobligated balances (unused contract authority) to provide OA. From September 30, 1997, the expiration of ISTEA, to November 13, 1997, the effective date of the Surface Transportation Extension Act of 1997 ("STEA"), the FHWA was able to manage through use of the large unobligated balances in the Highway Program. Since most states have unobligated balances of at least half their normal annual OA levels and an authorization act need not be in place for the FHWA to give states new OA, states were able to spend down prior unfunded federal apportionments (contract authority) with newly allocated OA. The lack of an enacted authorization act during this period did not pose a threat to the continued flow of revenues, because dedicated highway user fees continued to flow into the HTF (See Step 2, below, for further explanation of OA and unobligated balances.).
- Short-Term Authorization. ISTEA expired on September 30, 1997, and until passage of TEA-21 in May 1998, no new long-term authorization legislation was in effect. Despite the lack of long-term authorizing legislation, states were provided an upper limit on OA through passage of an appropriations act plus access to their unobligated balances. On November 13, 1997, Congress passed STEA, which provided a six-month authorization for highway funding and established a limit on the amount of new OA states could use at funding levels equal to about a quarter of Federal Fiscal Year 1997 authorization levels. After TEA-21 expired on September 30, 2003, 12 short-term extensions of TEA-21 were enacted ensuring continuation of the Highway Program until enactment of SAFETEA-LU was signed into law on August 10, 2005.

Annual Distributions. For most components of the Highway Program, the authorization acts set the distribution of spending authority among states. The primary methods used to distribute authorized federal highway revenues are "apportionment" and "allocation:"

• Apportionments. The contract authority created by authorization acts such as TEA-21 or SAFETEA-LU is distributed annually among the 50 states, the District of Columbia, and Puerto Rico using a process called apportionment of revenues. Apportionments indicate the maximum amount of contract authority that each state can expend for eligible projects in specific programs. For each Federal Fiscal Year, the FHWA has responsibility for apportioning authorized funding

for the various programs among the states according to formulas established in the authorizing statute. Annual apportionments are generally made on the first day of the Federal Fiscal Year, which is October 1.

<u>Allocations</u>. While most highway revenues are distributed to states through apportionments, some funding categories do not contain legislatively-mandated apportionment formulas. Distribution of revenues where there are no statutory formulas is called "allocation" or "discretionary allocation." In most cases, allocated federal funding is divided among states using criteria determined administratively by US DOT or as provided in a statute, often through competitive grant procedures.

Apportionment formulas historically have been designed to ensure distribution of federal revenues among states according to program needs, but also increasingly are intended to provide states a share of total HTF expenditures relatively close to their payments into the HTF. In addition to the apportionment formulas described above, ISTEA, TEA-21 and SAFETEA-LU included equity provisions designed to help states achieve a better ratio of payments from the HTF to payments into the HTF and a hold harmless rule to assure that no state would suffer a dramatic decline from one year to the next in its federal-aid appointment.

Since Federal Fiscal Year 1991, the annual aggregate apportionment has increased from \$15 billion to approximately \$31.2 billion in Federal Fiscal Year 2006 (Source: The FHWA, Highway Statistics, Table FA-4.).

Availability of Federal Highway Revenues. Federal-aid highway revenues are available to states for use for more than one year. Their availability does not terminate at the end of the Federal Fiscal Year, as is the case with many other federal programs. Consequently, when new apportionments or allocations are made, the amounts are added to a state's unused apportionments and allocations from the previous Federal Fiscal Year. Should a state fail to obligate (commit to spend) a year's apportionments and allocations within the period of availability specified for a given program (often 4 years), however, the authority to obligate any remaining amount lapses — that is, it is no longer available to the particular state.

Matching Requirements. With a few exceptions, the federal government does not pay for the entire cost of construction or improvement of federal-aid highways. Federal reimbursements are typically matched with state and/or local government revenues to account for the necessary dollars to complete the project. The maximum federal share is specified in the legislation authorizing the program. Most projects have an 80% federal share while Interstate maintenance projects typically have a 90% federal share.

Matching may be done either by matching the federal reimbursement of debt service up front (by, for example, reducing the borrowing requirements through a direct pay-as-you-go contribution toward project costs) or on a payment-by-payment basis. In the former case, the state match may be provided as an in-kind match or with toll credits consisting of toll revenues utilized for capital expenditures. In the latter case, the state provides its matching contribution on a nominal, current-year basis, with each debt service payment matched at the proper pro rata share.

For prior Series of Bonds, the State has fully satisfied the matching requirements through the use of toll credits. As a practical matter, however, the State has utilized funds derived from its motor vehicle fuel tax to first pay Bond Service Charges and then sought federal reimbursement for such payments. For the Bonds and future series of Additional Bonds, the Department expects that toll credits will be insufficient to fully satisfy match requirements; as a consequence, the State will not be fully reimbursed from Title 23 moneys for moneys used to pay Bond Service Charges.

Step 2: Obligation

The second step of the federal-aid funding process occurs when revenues that have been authorized by legislation, and either apportioned or allocated to individual states, are obligated for a

specific purpose. As noted in the previous section, Congress uses annual appropriations acts to control actual, annual obligation of funds in the HTF. Appropriations acts limit the amount of federal money that actually will be obligated and thus ultimately spent, and these annual amounts may be less than the authorized amount. This ceiling on the amount of contract authority that states may use is called the "annual obligation limit" ("OA").

Obligation is the commitment of the federal government to pay, through reimbursement to a state, the federal government's share of an approved project's eligible costs. This process is important to the states because it allows states to award contracts with assurance that the federal government will reimburse its share of incurred costs. From the federal perspective, obligations made are the outlays the federal government has committed to make from the HTF in the future. Because of the close relationship between obligations and outlays, Congress and the FHWA play a strong role in determining how much federal funding can be obligated by individual states through two primary processes:

- Appropriations Acts; and
- Distribution of OA.

Appropriations Acts. Congressional appropriations committees use the amount of federal-aid highway revenues that states can obligate in a given year, OA, as a means of balancing the annual level of highway spending with other federal budgetary priorities. This is accomplished through the establishment of an annual obligation limitation in the annual federal Department of Transportation and Related Agency Appropriations Act. The annual obligation limitation can be less than the level of funding authorized for the same year.

<u>Distribution of OA</u>. The obligation limitation is the amount of authorized funding that Congress allows states collectively to obligate in an individual year. The process of determining the annual obligation limitation begins when Congress establishes annual domestic discretionary spending caps — the amount of federal dollars that can be spent on all domestic, non-entitlement programs in a given year. Once such budget caps are determined, Congress distributes spending levels across different program areas, and a targeted level of outlays for highway spending is determined. Congress then establishes the amount of highway funding that can be obligated in the given year. This level often is below the authorized annual level, and serves as a limit on the total obligations in that particular year.

Once Congress establishes an overall obligation limitation, the FHWA distributes OA to states proportionately to each state's share of apportioned and allocated revenues. The actual ratio of OA to apportionments and allocations may vary from state to state because some federal-aid programs are exempt from the obligation limitation. Once each state's OA is set, states then submit requests to the FHWA to obligate revenues representing the federal share of specific projects throughout the years. A further description of this process is included in Step 3, below. As a state obligates revenues, its balance of OA is commensurately reduced, although additional OA may be received (for instance, through reallocation from other states).

A state's OA (unlike its apportionments and allocations of authorized funding) must be used before the end of the Federal Fiscal Year for which it is made available; if not, it will be distributed to other states. The FHWA closely monitors each state's plans for use of OA. In mid-summer, the FHWA collects any OA from states that do not plan to obligate all of their available OA before the end of the Federal Fiscal Year, and redistributes it to other states that can obligate the revenues. This reallocation of OA is known as the "August Redistribution."

<u>Unobligated Balances</u>. Because congressional authorization of federal-aid highway revenues represents a commitment to make all authorized revenues available to states for highway purposes, any shortfall between the limit on OA created through the annual appropriations process and the amount of contract authority apportioned and allocated to states does not disappear. Instead, the difference between obligation limitations and authorization levels creates what are known as "unobligated balances."

Although most federal-aid apportionments lapse after four years, this rarely happens with apportioned highway revenues because old apportionments are always spent before new apportionments. That is, when a state receives new apportionments and OA at the beginning of a Federal Fiscal Year, obligations are first made against remaining prior year's apportionments plus allocation until these are depleted. The net effect of this process, in conjunction with the year-to-year establishment of obligation limitations, has been that states have amassed considerable unobligated balances.

As explained in Step 1, above, unobligated balances permit the Highway Program to continue to fund state transportation projects during periods in which Congress fails to enact a reauthorization law before the expiration of the previous authorization period. In such periods, the unobligated balances allow states to fund their programs for several months, or even longer, after an authorization act has expired.

Step 3: Program Implementation

The third and final step in the overall federal-aid highway funding process — program implementation — occurs after authorized revenues have been distributed to states, and after states have had the opportunity to obligate those revenues. Once federal-aid highway revenues have been authorized and obligated, states must have developed highway programs that describe, at a project-by-project level, exactly how federal reimbursements will be earned. The process of developing and implementing state highway programs has three broad elements:

- budgeting;
- planning and programming; and
- fiscal management and reimbursement.

<u>Budgeting</u>. Budgetary information about availability of funding is crucial to the development of state highway programs. Projected state and federal funding levels are used to budget transportation needs. Consequently, state transportation budget officials track the availability of funding and develop forecasts of future state and federal revenues. States must estimate the availability of short and long-term state and federal funding in order to plan their highway programs. They use this information as a guide during long-range planning, and as a strict constraint on short-term programming.

<u>Planning and Programming</u>. The budget process, particularly the identification of available funding, provides the context for transportation planning and programming. The long-range planning process provides a big-picture perspective of anticipated project needs regionally across the State. Transportation Improvement Programs ("TIPs") follow on from long-range plans and provide a detailed outline of projects that are proposed for implementation in a time-frame of two to six years. At the federal level, state and local highway plans are reviewed by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") and the FHWA.

As a condition for receiving federal reimbursements for transportation programs, states must develop comprehensive transportation plans based on anticipated long-term state and federal funding levels for TIP categories. States and urban areas must satisfy these federal requirements to remain eligible for federal reimbursements, and specific projects are not eligible unless they are either directly identified in a long-range plan or consistent with policies and objectives identified in long-range plans. ISTEA required states to develop long-range transportation plans ("LRPs") that identify long-range state policies, objectives, and goals, while using realistic projections of available future state and federal funding.

ISTEA also required that short-term planning and programming be conducted at least every two years through the development of a TIP for each metropolitan area. Among other requirements, each TIP must include, for each project, the estimated project cost and amount of federal revenues proposed to be obligated during each year. Each draft TIP is submitted to the regional Transportation Advisory Group, a citizen panel established to coordinate public review of the TIP. Once formally approved in a public meeting, the TIPs are approved by the Metropolitan Planning Organization. The TIPs are then combined

into the State Transportation Improvement Plan ("STIP"), which also includes projects from regions outside a state's metropolitan areas. The STIP lists all projects proposed for funding with federal revenues for a period of at least three years. The STIP is then submitted to the FHWA and the Federal Transit Administration (the "FTA").

<u>Fiscal Management and Reimbursement.</u> States must follow federal fiscal management procedures as they implement projects that have passed through the approval and programming processes. These fiscal management procedures ensure that the FHWA and states are able to manage the process efficiently, from project authorization to actual payment of Federal Highway Reimbursements to the state.

In the traditional approach, a state simply obligates the full federal share of available funding at the beginning of the project, concurrent with project authorization. The first step in the fiscal management process begins when a state requests authorization to use federal funding on a project. The project sponsor submits plans, specifications and estimates ("PS&Es") for a project to the FHWA division office, and requests that the FHWA approve the use of federal funding for the appropriate federal share of the project. The project must be in the STIP and the PS&Es must identify the category of federal funding that will be used.

The FHWA evaluates the PS&Es to ensure that the project is eligible for federal funding and meets a variety of federal requirements (such as design standards). Provided that all requirements are satisfied, the FHWA authorizes federal participation in the project, and obligates the federal share of project costs. By obligating the revenues, the FHWA makes a commitment to reimburse the state for the federal share of eligible project costs. It sets aside the appropriate amount of that state's OA, and also sets aside an equivalent amount of apportioned revenues by program (or programs). Accordingly, the state must have sufficient OA to cover the level of federal participation it is requesting.

Once authorization for a project has been obtained, the state advertises the project and receives bids. Based on actual costs identified in bids, the state awards the contract to the lowest qualified bidder and submits a request to the FHWA asking for any necessary adjustments to federal obligations for the project. If approved, the amounts agreed to are included in a project agreement which identifies the revenues that will be encumbered by the state (formally applied against the state's resources), and the amount that will be reimbursed by the federal government.

Construction begins, and contractors submit bills to the state as work is completed. A state pays its contractor's bills with cash from the state treasury (with respect to the State, principally from motor vehicle fuel tax proceeds); the state bills the FHWA electronically for the federal share of completed work for which payment has been made; and the FHWA makes payment to the state via electronic transfer. This FHWA reimbursement to the state liquidates its obligation for the federal share of the costs incurred to that point. As project work continues and state expenditures are reported to the FHWA, federal reimbursements are made, generally on a weekly basis.

Department Use of Title 23 Moneys

In the Certificate and Agreement, the Department has covenanted and agreed that, in each Year that any Bonds are outstanding, (i) it shall use the Title 23 Moneys received by it first for the payment of the current Federal Fiscal Year's Bond Service Charges on the Bonds and Additional Bonds and for debt service on Parity Obligations prior to use of the Title 23 Moneys for any other purpose; (ii) it shall reserve from Title 23 Moneys available in each Federal Fiscal Year an amount of money sufficient to enable it to pay all Bond Service Charges due on the Bonds and Additional Bonds and all debt service due on Parity Obligations in the immediately following Federal Fiscal Year; and (iii) it shall not permit any Additional Bonds or Parity Obligations to be issued if, upon such issuance, the total amount of Bond Service Charges payable with respect to the Bonds and any Additional Bonds in any State Fiscal Year plus the total amount due as debt service on all Parity Obligations in that State Fiscal Year would exceed one-fifth of the average amount of Federal Highway Receipts received by the Department in the three immediately previous State Fiscal Years. The Department has reserved from the Title 23 Moneys available to it in the Federal Fiscal Year ended September 30, 2007, sufficient moneys to enable it to pay the Bond Service

Charges with respect to the Bonds and the Additional Bonds through the Federal Fiscal Year ended September 30, 2008.

The obligations of the Department to cause moneys to be deposited with the Treasurer for the payment of Bond Service Charges and to perform other obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement are subject to and dependent upon biennial appropriations being made to the Department by the General Assembly for such purposes. If the General Assembly fails to appropriate moneys to enable the Department to perform its obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement, those obligations of the Department under the Certificate and Agreement will terminate. The General Assembly may not, under the provisions of the Ohio Constitution, make appropriations for a period longer than two years. While the Treasurer and the Department expect that the General Assembly will, for each State fiscal biennium, continue to appropriate amounts to the Department sufficient to meet its obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement to the Treasurer, consistent with the State budget, the General Assembly is under no legal obligation to make such appropriations. The Bonds are special obligations of the State payable primarily from and secured solely by the Pledged Receipts under the Trust Agreement. The Bonds do not represent or constitute a debt of the Treasurer, the Department, the State, or of any political subdivision thereof, nor a pledge of the faith and credit of the State, or any political subdivision thereof. The Holders and Book-Entry Interest Owners of the Bonds will have no right to have excises or taxes levied by the General Assembly for the payment of Bond Service Charges on the Bonds, and those Holders and Book-Entry Interest Owners will have no right to have moneys raised by taxation by the State obligated or pledged for the payment of Bond Service Charges. The Projects are not pledged or mortgaged as security for the Bonds and the Trustee will not have the right to take possession of or operate any portion of Projects upon a default under or termination of the Certificate and Agreement.

Air Quality Requirements

The State receives federal reimbursements under the Highway Program for proposed projects contained in its approved Statewide and Metropolitan Planning Organization ("MPO") area long range regional Transportation Plan and its approved STIP/TIP. The STIP is a compilation of approved TIP projects for each metropolitan area in the State and certain additional projects for rural areas. For projects described in a TIP to obtain the required funding, and qualify for federal funding, each such Transportation Plan and the STIP/TIP must comply with certain federal and state requirements, including "transportation conformity."

"Transportation conformity" refers to requirements under both Title 23 and the Federal Clean Air Act designed to ensure that the undertaking of federally-approved transportation projects is consistent with federal and state plans to achieve the national ambient air quality standards ("NAAOS"). Specifically, in states with areas designated under the Clean Air Act as "nonattainment" areas (i.e., areas that have failed to comply with one or more national ambient air quality standard) and "maintenance" areas (i.e., areas that once were designated as nonattainment areas but are now meeting air quality standards), Transportation Plans and TIPs relating to those areas must not conflict with the state's efforts to attain or maintain compliance with the federal air quality standards. The Federal Clean Air Act requires every state to have a federally-approved air quality plan (known as a "State Implementation Plan" or "SIP"). The SIP records the strategies, programs, and procedures the State will implement to achieve and maintain the NAAOS. A state's SIP is typically developed by the state's environmental agency (e.g. in Ohio, the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency develops the SIP) and must be approved by the US EPA. For a nonattainment area, the SIP must include certain requirements designed to bring the area into compliance with national ambient air quality standards by a certain date. Such requirements may include Motor Vehicle Emissions Budgets, which limit the total amount of given pollutants that can be emitted from certain transportation sources in the nonattainment or maintenance area. The Motor Vehicle Emissions Budgets are established by the state and approved by US EPA. To ensure that the Transportation Plans and the STIP will not conflict with the SIP, the MPO for a nonattainment or maintenance area must demonstrate that mobile source emissions from vehicles traversing the transportation networks identified in the Transportation Plans and STIP will not exceed the SIP mobile

source budgets. This process is referred to as a conformity demonstration. Affirmative US DOT transportation conformity determinations are a requirement for states and local governments to receive federal reimbursements for transportation projects that add lanes or system capacity within nonattainment and maintenance areas.

US DOT conformity determinations are effective for a four year period. Should an area experience a "conformity lapse" beginning one year from the lapse date, no new projects (or subsequent phases of existing projects that require additional state or federal approval to be eligible for federal reimbursement) which add lanes or capacity in an affected nonattainment or maintenance area will be approved for federal reimbursement under the Highway Program until a conforming Transportation Plan and TIP can be developed and approved. With respect to existing approved projects in the nonattainment area or maintenance area, the state may continue to expend state funds and receive federal reimbursements, but only to the extent that such projects (or portions thereof) have already received all required state and federal approvals and funding commitments or are exempt from the transportation conformity requirements. If an existing approved project requires state or federal approval of subsequent phases to be eligible for continued federal reimbursements, any costs incurred by the state to advance such project into the subsequent phase during the lapse period will not be eligible for future reimbursement under the Highway Program. Furthermore, the construction of state-funded projects during the lapse period (i.e. projects funded only by state expenditures for which the state is not seeking federal reimbursement) that are "regionally significant" can also be suspended, unless all necessary state and local approvals for such projects were obtained prior to the conformity lapse.

The Department has current US DOT conformity determinations for each Ohio nonattainment and/or maintenance area MPO Transportation Plan and TIP.

The Clean Air Act gives US EPA the authority to impose sanctions on a state that fails to make SIP submissions required by the Clean Air Act, or to implement the programs of the SIP that EPA has approved. Before imposing sanctions under this provision, EPA must give a state formal notice of the deficiency, and 18 months to correct it.

Possible sanctions include withholding certain Federal-aid Highway Receipts (those receipts applicable to unapproved capacity-related projects in nonattainment areas) from the State and limiting allowable pollutant levels in clean air permits. Safety related projects are exempt from sanctions. The Department's current projects and planned projects are within attainment areas or are safety related, or are capacity projects included in a conforming MPO Transportation Plan and TIP. Moreover, if a project is sanctioned, related federal funds may be redirected to other approved projects. Therefore, the Federal Highway Receipts appropriated to the State for the Projects financed with the proceeds of the Bonds or Additional Bonds are not expected to change even if sanctions were imposed. The State is current with all US EPA SIP requirements.

Future Federal Highway Assistance to the State

Under SAFETEA-LU, average annual highway apportionments to the State, the maximum amount of contract authority available to the State under the Highway Program for Federal Fiscal Year 2005 through Federal Fiscal Year 2009 are to increase by approximately 36 percent over average annual TEA-21 levels. The equity provisions of SAFETEA-LU provide that the rate of return to the State of its payments into the HTF is to increase from 90.5 percent in Federal Fiscal Years 2005 and 2006, to 91.5 percent in Federal Fiscal Year 2007 and 92 percent in Federal Fiscal Years 2008 and 2009.

OHIO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

The Department was established on September 29, 1972, by the Ohio General Assembly through the expansion of the responsibilities of the former Ohio Department of Highways to include all modes of transportation. Over the past three decades, as its modal responsibilities have increased, the Department has added organizational units responsible for administering Federal and State programs relating to aviation, public transportation and rail transportation. The Department is responsible for planning,

designing, constructing, maintaining and rehabilitating the State's highway system, administering federal funds used by local jurisdictions in constructing and maintaining their local roads and bridges, and administering both Federal and State funds which provide grants for aviation, bridges, public transportation, railroad, and waterway facilities and programs throughout the State.

The Department is one of the largest agencies of State government, with approximately 6,000 employees. The Department consists of a central headquarters office, located in Columbus, Ohio and 12 District Offices located throughout the State. The Director is appointed by the Governor.

The Department is a highly decentralized organization, with most highway-related functions performed in 12 geographic districts. Approximately 83 percent of the Department's employees are located in the 12 district, 88 county and 112 outpost facilities throughout the State. The districts perform planning, design, construction, engineering, material testing, and maintenance functions for the Department. The 12 districts are each headed by a District Deputy Director, who reports to the Director of Transportation.

The Department's Central Office contains the offices and divisions which provide technical and administrative support to the districts for both highway and modal programs. The organization of the Central Office consists of the highway program divisions, the modal program divisions, the administrative support division/offices and the Director's administrative support staff. The Central Office highway program divisions are headed by Division Deputy Directors who report to the Chief of Staff or Director of Transportation. These divisions and their respective offices develop policies and procedures, provide technical support and monitor the Districts for compliance with established procedures. All construction contracts are advertised and awarded by the Central Office.

The State has the seventh largest highway network in the country, with approximately 125,000 miles of roadway, of which approximately 19,300 miles are under the Department's jurisdiction. The Department is responsible for and/or is involved in a wide variety of programs and projects relating to aviation, bicycling, highways, public transportation, railroads and waterways. The Department's annual budget for all programs is approximately \$3.2 billion. Major funding sources for the Department's highway program include state motor fuel taxes and fees and Title 23 Moneys received from the United States Department of Transportation. See "SOURCES OF FUNDS FOR PAYMENT OF BONDS." Major funding sources for the Department's modal programs include State General Revenue Fund moneys and Title 23 Moneys.

The Bonds do not represent or constitute a debt of the Treasurer, the Department, the State, or of any political subdivision thereof, nor a pledge of the faith and credit of the State, or any political subdivision thereof. The Holders and Book-Entry Interest Owners of the Bonds will have no right to have excises or taxes levied by the General Assembly for the payment of Bond Service Charges on the Bonds, and those Holders and Book-Entry Interest Owners will have no right to have moneys raised by taxation by the State obligated or pledged for the payment of Bond Service Charges.

State Infrastructure Bank

In 1996, the Ohio State Infrastructure Bank ("SIB") was created and capitalized with a \$50 million authorization from the General Assembly and \$87 million in Federal Title 23 Highway funds. Any highway or transit project eligible under Title 23, as well as aviation, rail and other intermodal transportation facilities, is eligible for direct loan funding under the SIB.

In 1997, the SIB was redefined to consist of the highway and transit bank fund, the aviation infrastructure bank fund, the rail infrastructure bank fund and the infrastructure obligations fund, each as funds in the state treasury administered by the Director of the Department. The infrastructure bank obligations fund consists of the proceeds of bonds which are used to fund the costs of qualified projects. The other funds within the SIB provide assistance in the form of loans, loan guarantees, letters of credit, leases, lease-purchase agreements, interest rate subsidies, debt service reserves and such other forms as

the Director determines to be appropriate to encourage public and private investment in transportation facilities that contribute to the multi-modal and intermodal transportation capabilities of the State. Repayments of such assistance are made to the Department, making the SIB a revolving loan program.

THE CERTIFICATE AND AGREEMENT

General

The Act provides that Obligations may be issued by the Treasurer upon the certification of the Director of the amount of moneys needed for State Infrastructure Projects or to refund Obligations or District Obligations issued for such purpose. The Certificate and Agreement contains that certification and certain covenants and undertakings of the Director and the Treasurer as conditions for the issuance of the Bonds. Under the Ohio Constitution, the term of any obligations involving expenditures contained in any agreement between the Treasurer and the Director shall be for a period not exceeding the then current two-year period for which appropriations for payments to the Treasurer have been made by the General Assembly. Provision may be made for renewals at the end of each term for another term not exceeding two years.

The following summarizes certain provisions of the Certificate and Agreement, to which document reference is made for the detailed provisions thereof.

Terms of the Certificate and Agreement

The obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement currently expire on June 30, 2009, the end of the current State fiscal biennium. The Director has the right to renew those obligations under the Certificate and Agreement for successive terms of two years each (each, a "Renewal Term"), commencing on the beginning of each State fiscal biennium (currently July 1 of each odd-numbered year), upon the same terms as are contained in the Certificate and Agreement, unless sooner terminated in accordance with the Certificate and Agreement and the Trust Agreement. The Director's right to renew the term of those obligations under the Certificate and Agreement shall be deemed exercised upon the effectiveness, at or prior to the expiration of the then current term of the Certificate and Agreement, of legislation enacted by the General Assembly appropriating funds to the Department at least equal to the Bond Service Charges and other sums payable under the Trust Agreement with respect to the State Infrastructure Projects, and certain other sums payable under the Certificate and Agreement during the next Renewal Term. See "THE CERTIFICATE AND AGREEMENT – Payments and Pledges." The Certificate and Agreement shall terminate upon the payment in full of all Bonds outstanding under the Trust Agreement.

Payments and Pledges

The Certificate and Agreement requires that with respect to any Federal Fiscal Year for which moneys constituting Pledged Federal Highway Receipts are available, the Department will cause to be deposited in the State Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bond Service Fund, for credit to the appropriate account thereof, from such moneys or other available funds, an amount equal to all Bond Service Charges payable on the Bonds and Additional Bonds, and all debt service due on Parity Obligations for such Federal Fiscal Year, prior to any other payment to be made from such moneys during that Federal Fiscal Year. The payments (other than those to be deposited in the Administrative Expense Fund, the Rebate Fund and the Infrastructure Bank Obligations Fund and accounts or subaccounts limited to certain series of bonds) are pledged by the Treasurer pursuant to the Trust Agreement for the payment of Bond Service Charges on the Bonds. All deposits are required to be credited to the State Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bond Service Fund, the Administrative Expense Fund, the Infrastructure Bank Obligations Fund or the Rebate Fund. See "THE TRUST AGREEMENT – Funds and Accounts."

During each term of the obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement, the Department has agreed to deposit with the Treasurer, without notice or demand, on or before each Interest Payment Date, an amount that includes (i) an amount equal to the Bond Service Charges on the

Bonds payable on such Interest Payment Date; (ii) such sums, if any, as may be necessary to maintain any applicable required reserve in a bond service reserve account; and (iii) such sums, if any, as may be necessary to purchase the Bonds which the Treasurer is obligated to purchase. During each term of the obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement, the Department has the option to make deposits in the nature of prepayments for the purchase or defeasance of the Bonds.

During each term of the obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement, the Department has also agreed to deposit with the Treasurer, (i) when needed, an amount estimated by the Treasurer to be equal to the administrative fees, expenses and other obligations, other than Bond Service Charges, incurred in connection with the Certificate and Agreement, the Trust Agreement and related agreements and, (ii) when needed, amounts to be paid to the United States of America which are not paid from other sources.

Except as set forth below under "THE CERTIFICATE AND AGREEMENT – Legislative Appropriations," the duty of the Department to make the deposits with the Treasurer during each two-year term of the obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement is absolute and unconditional, and is payable without any rights of termination, set-off, recoupment, deduction, defense or counterclaim which the Department might have against the Treasurer, the Trustee or any other person, and without abatement, suspension, deferment, diminution or reduction for any reason or as the result of any occurrence whatsoever, including, without limitation, whether or not the Major New State Infrastructure Projects are ever acquired or constructed or are ever used by the Department, or are available for use by the Department, any actions of the Department, any acts or circumstances constituting eviction or constructive eviction, failure of consideration, failure of title or frustration of purpose, or any damage to or destruction of any of the Major New State Infrastructure Projects or any taking of the title to or the right of temporary use of all or any part of any of the Major New State Infrastructure Projects by condemnation or eminent domain.

Legislative Appropriations

The agreement of the Department to make deposits with the Treasurer pursuant to the Certificate and Agreement, and to perform other obligations involving expenditures thereunder, at the times and in the amounts provided for in the Certificate and Agreement, is effective and binding upon the Department only when and to the extent that funds have been appropriated by the General Assembly and are available for that purpose. Under the Ohio Constitution, an appropriation may not be made for more than a two-year period. In addition, the obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement may be renewed only for two-year periods. Accordingly, the Department is obligated to make deposits under the Certificate and Agreement only for two-year periods, to the extent funds have been appropriated and are available.

The Certificate and Agreement requires that projected deposits under the Certificate and Agreement be included in the estimated budget of the Department for the State budget estimates prepared by the Director of Budget and Management for inclusion in each State biennial budget submitted to the Governor. The Certificate and Agreement provides that, on or before the commencement of each State Fiscal Year, currently July 1 of each year, the Treasurer shall submit to the Department and to the Director of Budget and Management a schedule which shall set forth the estimated amounts and dates of the deposits due under the Certificate and Agreement during that State Fiscal Year and on a timely basis shall supplement or correct such schedule to reflect any changes in such payments. The Department is required to encumber the appropriations made for deposits under the Certificate and Agreement during that State Fiscal Year as set forth in the schedule. On a timely basis prior to the date required for each such deposit, the Department is required to submit an order in the nature of an invoice or voucher for each payment to cause issuance of a warrant payable to the Trustee and redeemable at the Office of the Treasurer in accordance with law, for all such deposits are required to be credited to the appropriate fund or account in accordance with the Trust Agreement.

Under the terms of the Certificate and Agreement, a failure by the General Assembly to appropriate moneys sufficient to pay Bond Service Charges, amounts necessary for Administrative Expenses and other sums to be deposited with the Treasurer under the Certificate and Agreement for the next State fiscal biennium would result in the termination of the obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement at the end of the two-year term then in effect. The obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement will, however, be fully reinstated, as if they had never been terminated, provided the conditions set forth below under "THE CERTIFICATE AND AGREEMENT – Reinstatement" are met.

The General Assembly may not, under provisions of the Ohio Constitution, make appropriations for a period longer than two years. While the Treasurer expects that for the State fiscal biennium, the General Assembly will appropriate amounts to the Department sufficient to meet its obligation to make deposits with the Treasurer under the Certificate and Agreement consistent with the State budget, the General Assembly is not under a legal obligation to make appropriations in accordance with such State budgets for future State fiscal biennia. Holders and Book-Entry Interest Owners of the Bonds will have no right to have excises or taxes levied by the General Assembly for the payment of Bond Service Charges thereon, and moneys raised by taxation by the State shall not be obligated or pledged for the payment of such Bond Service Charges.

Further Covenants

Certain other covenants of the Department contained in the Certificate and Agreement are as follows:

- (a) In each Federal Fiscal Year that Bonds are outstanding, the Department will not expend and encumber Pledged Federal Highway Receipts for purposes other than payment of Bond Service Charges on the Bonds and Additional Bonds and payment of debt service on Parity Obligations in excess of the amount by which such Pledged Federal Highway Receipts available in that Federal Fiscal Year exceed the amount due and payable, directly or indirectly, for Bond Service Charges on the Bonds and Additional Bonds and for debt service on Parity Obligations in that Federal Fiscal Year.
- (b) The Department will not permit any future Additional Bonds or Parity Obligations to be issued if, upon such issuance, the total amount of Bond Service Charges payable with respect to the Bonds and Additional Bonds in any State Fiscal Year plus the total amount payable as debt service on all Parity Obligations in that State Fiscal Year would exceed one-fifth of the average amount of Federal Highway Receipts received by the Department in the three immediately previous State Fiscal Years.
- (c) The Department will reserve Pledged Federal Highway Receipts during each Federal Fiscal Year sufficient for the payment of Bond Service Charges on the Bonds and Additional Bonds and for payment of debt service on Parity Obligations due in the next succeeding Federal Fiscal Year.
- (d) The Department will not enter into any agreement obligating or pledging moneys constituting Pledged Federal Highway Receipts to the payment, directly or indirectly, of debt service on other obligations, including Parity Obligations, without notice to the Treasurer.
- (e) The Department will include covenants substantially similar to the covenants set forth above in all agreements executed after the date of the Bonds which obligate or pledge moneys constituting Pledged Federal Highway Receipts to the payment, directly or indirectly, of debt service on other obligations.

Remedies

The Major New State Infrastructure Projects, including the Projects, are not pledged or mortgaged as security for the Bonds. Consequently, the Trustee does not have the remedies normally available to secured creditors and may have no practical remedy to insure that funds are available for the payment of Bond Service Charges on the Bonds in the event of termination of the Certificate and Agreement, except for available Pledged Receipts.

Termination

If the Department fails to exercise its right to renew the term of the obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement for any Renewal Term, the obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement shall terminate at the end of the term then in effect. In the event of such a termination of the obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement, the Department's obligation to make payments to provide funds to pay Bond Service Charges on the Bonds would terminate. The Certificate and Agreement also terminates upon payment in full of all Bonds outstanding. Under the Act and the Trust Agreement, the Trustee may not take possession of, operate or sell the Major New State Infrastructure Projects, including the Projects, in the event of a failure to make payments under the Certificate and Agreement or upon any termination of the obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement.

Reinstatement

Notwithstanding any termination of the obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement, if (a) all payments of Bond Service Charges on the Bonds (other than as a result of acceleration) and all other payments due under the Trust Agreement have been made, (b) any acceleration of the Bonds has been duly rescinded and annulled, (c) all defaults under the Certificate and Agreement have been cured or waived and (d) the General Assembly has appropriated any necessary funds to enable the Department to pay amounts to become due under the Certificate and Agreement for any Renewal Term of the obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement, then without further action by the Trustee or the Treasurer, the obligations involving expenditures under the Certificate and Agreement shall be fully reinstated as if they had never been terminated.

THE TRUST AGREEMENT

General

The following, in addition to information contained above under the headings "DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS" and "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS," summarizes certain provisions of the Trust Agreement to which reference is made for the detailed provisions thereof. The Bond Orders authorizing the Bonds are incorporated in their entirety in, and constitute part of, the Trust Agreement and all references herein to the Trust Agreement shall, unless specific section references are made, include the Bond Orders.

So long as the Bonds are immobilized in a Book-Entry System with a Depository, that Depository or its nominee is for all purposes of the Trust Agreement considered by the Treasurer and the Trustee to be the Holder of the Bonds, and the Book-Entry Interest Owners of Bonds will not be considered Holders and have no rights as Holders under the Trust Agreement. See "APPENDIX B – BOOK-ENTRY FORM."

Security

The Trust Agreement provides for a pledge of the Pledged Receipts by the Treasurer to the Trustee for the benefit of the Holders of the Bonds and Additional Bonds. See "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS." In addition, the payment of the principal of and interest on the Insured Bonds is insured by the Policy. The Policy does <u>not</u> insure the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds maturing June 15, 2008 through June 15, 2011.

Funds and Accounts

The Trust Agreement establishes the following funds and accounts to be used for specific purposes thereunder: the Debt Service Account in the State Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bond Service Fund created under Section 5531.10(R) of the Ohio Revised Code, the Administrative Expense Fund, the Infrastructure Bank Obligations Fund and the Rebate Fund (collectively referred to herein as the "Funds"). All Funds, other than the Infrastructure Bank Obligations Fund, which is a fund of the Treasurer, are funds and accounts held by the Trustee. The Administrative Expense Fund, the Infrastructure Bank Obligations Fund and the Rebate Fund are not pledged for the payment of Bond Service Charges.

<u>Debt Service Account.</u> The Debt Service Account has been established in the State Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bond Service Fund. There will be deposited in the Debt Service Account: (i) amounts from the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds representing accrued interest, if any, on the Bonds from their dated date to the date of delivery; (ii) all Pledged Federal Highway Receipts received by the Treasurer under the Certificate and Agreement and Certificates and Agreements entered into in connection with Additional Bonds (except the portion of such moneys to be credited to other Funds or accounts); (iii) any other available Pledged Receipts; (iv) excess Bond proceeds remaining in the Administrative Expense Fund; and (v) all other revenues or receipts derived by the Treasurer from the Major New State Infrastructure Projects unless previously pledged. The Debt Service Account, except moneys transferred to the Rebate Fund, any bond service reserve account or any bond redemption and purchase account will be used solely for the payment of Bond Service Charges on the Bonds and Additional Bonds as they become due.

Administrative Expense Fund. The Administrative Expense Fund will be used to pay the administrative fees and expenses and other fees, expenses and obligations incurred by the Treasurer and the Department including without limitation, regular and special fees and reasonable expenses of the Trustee, the Bond Registrar, Paying Agents, authenticating agents, Rating Agencies, tender agents, transfer agents, marketing agents, remarketing agents, verification agents, indexing agents, administrative agents, depositories, financial advisors, accounting experts, attorneys, and other consultants and independent contractors, including printing services incurred in connection with the issuance, carrying, securing, paying, redeeming or retirement of Bonds and Additional Bonds, including costs and expenses relating to letters of credit, lines of credit, insurance, put agreements, stand-by purchase agreements, remarketing and administrative agreements, interest swap or hedging agreements and related costs, and any other credit enhancement, liquidity, remarketing, renewal or refunding arrangements.

Fees and expenses incurred by the Treasurer and payable from the Administrative Expense Fund will also be funded from deposits due under the Certificate and Agreement and Certificates and Agreements entered into in connection with Additional Bonds and paid into the Administrative Expense Fund. Any excess in the Administrative Expense Fund is required to be transferred to the Debt Service Account.

Series 2007-1 Rebate Account. Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, there has been created by the Treasurer and ordered to be maintained in the custody of the Trustee as a separate deposit account, a Rebate Fund, in which the Treasurer may establish separate rebate accounts for the Bonds and each series of Additional Bonds. The Tenth Supplemental Trust Agreement establishes the Series 2007-1 Rebate Account for the Bonds in the Rebate Fund to comply with the provisions of Section 148(f) of the Code. The amounts on deposit in the Rebate Fund are not pledged to the Holders of Bonds or Additional Bonds as security for the payment of Bond Service Charges on the Bonds or Additional Bonds, are not Pledged Receipts, and are not subject to the pledge created by the Trust Agreement.

At the times and in the manner required by the Code, (a) the Treasurer will retain a firm of independent certified public accountants or a firm of nationally recognized bond counsel or a firm of national reputation listed under the Arbitrage Rebate Section of The Bond Buyer's Municipal Marketplace® Directory that is experienced in, and qualified to perform arbitrage or rebate calculations, to calculate the applicable rebate amount; (b) if necessary, the Treasurer will provide for any amount to be paid to the United States of America from payments pursuant to the Certificate and Agreement in accordance with the law; and (c) the Trustee will pay the applicable amount to the United States of America.

<u>Infrastructure Bank Obligations Fund.</u> There will be deposited in the Infrastructure Bank Obligations Fund of the Treasurer (a) the proceeds of the Bonds and Additional Bonds, other than proceeds required to be deposited in other Funds and accounts and (b) any gift, grant, appropriation or donation delivered to the Trustee with specific instructions for deposit in the Infrastructure Bank Obligations Fund. Moneys in the Infrastructure Bank Obligations Fund shall be used for the payment or reimbursement of costs of Major New State Infrastructure Projects.

Special Accounts and Subaccounts. Pursuant to any Series Bond Order, the Treasurer may (i) create accounts and subaccounts in the State Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bond Service Fund, Administrative Expense Fund, Infrastructure Bank Obligations Fund or the Rebate Fund, and (ii) make special provisions, among others, for any proceeds of those Additional Bonds allocated by such Series Bond Order to capitalized interest or to fund a bond service reserve account for such Additional Bonds, and for any Pledged Receipts (other than payments of the Department under the Certificates and Agreements entered into in connection with such Additional Bonds, and income from the investment of funds and any other Pledged Receipts pledged to all Bonds and Additional Bonds) pledged exclusively to those Additional Bonds by the applicable Supplemental Trust Agreement, to be credited to such special accounts or subaccounts, and for the holding, investing and disposition of any moneys credited to those accounts or subaccounts in accordance with that Series Bond Order and for the primary or exclusive benefit of the Additional Bonds authorized by or referred to in that Series Bond Order. If moneys credited to such accounts or subaccounts and income from the investment of those moneys are so restricted, then the amounts credited to such accounts or subaccounts and to be derived from those investments, to the extent so restricted, shall not be deemed to be available for Bond Service Charges on other Bonds and Additional Bonds in determining the sufficiency of the Debt Service Account or any bond service reserve account applicable to the other Bonds and Additional Bonds under the provisions of the General Bond Order and the applicable Series Bond Order.

Investment of Certain Funds

Moneys in the Debt Service Account, the Infrastructure Bank Bond Service Revenue Account, the Administrative Expense Fund and the Rebate Fund may be invested and reinvested by the Trustee, in accordance with instructions of the Treasurer, in any Eligible Investments. Investments of moneys credited to the Debt Service Account, the Infrastructure Bank Bond Service Revenue Account, the Administrative Expense Fund, the Infrastructure Bank Obligations Fund and the Rebate Fund will mature or be redeemable at the option of the holder thereof at the times and in the amounts necessary to provide moneys when needed for payments to be made from those Funds. In particular, moneys held in the Debt Service Account will be available to pay Bond Service Charges as they become due. An investment of moneys in any fund, account or subaccount will be deemed at all times a part of that fund, account or

subaccount and any profit will be credited and any loss will be charged to that fund, account or subaccount. Investments will be valued at the lesser of face or market value on a quarterly basis, or more frequently as determined by the Treasurer, to evaluate the adequacy of amounts in the Debt Service Account and the Infrastructure Bank Bond Service Revenue Account and excess amounts in any other Funds or accounts.

Additional Bonds

One or more series of Additional Bonds are issuable under the Trust Agreement for the purpose of paying additional costs of the Major New State Infrastructure Projects for the use of the Department as authorized by the General Assembly (in an amount, for all such Major New State Infrastructure Projects, not in excess of the project costs as authorized by the General Assembly) and for the purpose of refunding certain obligations issued under the Act and District Obligations. The Series 1998-1 Bonds, the Series 1999-1 Bonds, the Series 2001-1 Bonds, the Series 2002-1 Bonds, the Series 2003-1 Bonds, the Series 2005-1 Bonds and the Series 2006-1 Bonds are the only Additional Bonds that have been issued as of the date of this Official Statement. Additional Bonds are on a parity with the Bonds outstanding under the Trust Agreement, except as to bond service reserve accounts or Credit Support Instruments, if any, applicable only to certain series of such outstanding Bonds or Additional Bonds. The Series 1998-1 Bonds and the Series 1999-1 Bonds are being defeased simultaneously with the issuance of the Bonds.

The Department has agreed in the Certificate and Agreement that it will not permit any future Additional Bonds to be issued if, upon such issuance, the total amount of Bond Service Charges payable with respect to the Bonds and Additional Bonds in any State Fiscal Year plus the total amount payable as debt service on all Parity Obligations in that State Fiscal Year would exceed one-fifth of the average amount of Federal Highway Receipts received by the Department in the three immediately previous State Fiscal Years.

The issuance of future Additional Bonds under the Trust Agreement is also subject to the following conditions, among others: (i) the State, the Treasurer and State agencies are not in default of any applicable covenants or obligations contained in the Trust Agreement or in the Bonds or in the outstanding Additional Bonds and the authentication and delivery of the Additional Bonds will not result in any such default; (ii) the principal amount of the Additional Bonds, of the other Bonds and Additional Bonds then issued or outstanding (other than such Bonds or Additional Bonds then being funded or refunded) and of Parity Obligations outstanding, will not exceed in the aggregate the principal amount of Bonds, Additional Bonds and Parity Obligations which may be issued or outstanding under then existing authorizations of the General Assembly, the provisions of the Act and the Certificate and Agreement; (iii) upon the issuance and delivery of the Additional Bonds, the amount in any bond service reserve account shall not be less than the applicable required reserve; (iv) any necessary Certificate and Agreement will have been executed and delivered providing for deposits with the Treasurer sufficient to pay Bond Service Charges and other expenses with respect to such Additional Bonds and appropriations will have been made by the General Assembly during the then current state fiscal biennium in an amount estimated to be sufficient to pay the Bond Service Charges and other costs related to such Additional Bonds during such biennium; (v) the certificate of the Director of Budget and Management confirming that amounts sufficient to pay currently estimated deposits under the Certificate and Agreement and debt service on Parity Obligations have been appropriated and that amounts in subsequent biennia have been requested, when appropriate; and (vi) the Trustee has received (a) a copy, certified by the Treasurer or an authorized officer of the Treasurer, of the Series Bond Order authorizing the issuance and delivery of the Additional Bonds to be authenticated and delivered, adopted in conformity with the General Bond Order to be set forth in that Series Bond Order; (b) an original executed counterpart of the Supplemental Trust Agreement entered into in connection with the issuance of those Additional Bonds; (c) an original executed counterpart of any Certificate and Agreement entered into in connection with the issuance of those Additional Bonds; (d) a request and authorization to the Trustee on behalf of the State, signed by the Treasurer or an authorized officer of the Treasurer, to authenticate and deliver the Additional Bonds to, or on the order of, the purchaser thereof who is therein identified, upon payment of the sum specified in that request and authorization; (e) the certificate of the Treasurer or an authorized officer of the Treasurer as to items (i), (ii), (iii), (iv) and (v) above; and (f) the written opinion of legal counsel retained

or designated by the Treasurer, or other legal counsel satisfactory to the Trustee, to the effect that documents submitted to the Trustee in connection with the application then being made comply with the requirements of the Trust Agreement, and that in that counsel's opinion all conditions precedent to the issuance of those Additional Bonds as provided in the Trust Agreement have been complied with, and a written opinion of bond counsel retained or designated by the Treasurer who may also be the legal counsel referred to above, that the Additional Bonds, the authentication of which is applied for, when duly executed, authenticated and delivered by or on behalf of the Trustee, will be valid and legal special obligations of the State, issued by the Treasurer, in accordance with their terms and will be secured by the Trust Agreement with all Bonds then outstanding.

Parity Obligations

The Trust Agreement contemplates the issuance of Parity Obligations. "Parity Obligations" means any obligation (other than the Bonds and Additional Bonds) of any person which, by its terms, is payable from or secured by Pledged Federal Highway Receipts and which obligation is not expressly subordinated to the Bonds.

The Department has agreed in the Certificate and Agreement that it shall not permit any future Parity Obligations to be issued if, upon such issuance, the total amount of Bond Service Charges payable with respect to the Bonds and Additional Bonds in any State Fiscal Year plus the total amount payable as debt service on all Parity Obligations in that State Fiscal Year would exceed one-fifth of the average amount of Federal Highway Receipts received by the Department in the three immediately previous State Fiscal Years. See "THE CERTIFICATE AND AGREEMENT – Further Covenants" and "SOURCES OF FUNDS FOR PAYMENT OF BONDS."

Further Covenants

Certain other covenants of the Treasurer contained in the Trust Agreement are as follows:

Maintenance of Certificate and Agreement. The Treasurer covenants in the Trust Agreement to take all necessary and lawful actions to comply with the Treasurer's agreements, obligations, duties and responsibilities under any applicable Certificate and Agreement or any agreement, the revenues or receipts from which constitute Pledged Receipts, and to take all actions within its authority to maintain any applicable Certificate and Agreement and those agreements in effect and to enforce the rights of the Treasurer thereunder in accordance with the terms thereof, including actions at law and in equity, as may be appropriate.

The Treasurer will provide in the Certificates and Agreements for deposits thereunder in sufficient and appropriate amounts to pay when due (i) all Bond Service Charges on the Bonds and Additional Bonds of the related series from the Debt Service Account, (ii) all administrative expenses from the Administrative Expense Fund, (iii) all amounts necessary to maintain a required reserve, if any, in any applicable bond service reserve account, and (iv) all amounts to be paid to the United States of America which are not otherwise available in one of the Funds or accounts created pursuant to or described in the Trust Agreement. The Treasurer covenants not to amend, modify, alter, change or waive any term or provision of any applicable Certificate and Agreement if such action would have the effect of (a) reducing the amounts to be deposited thereunder to amounts less than described in the preceding sentence or changing the times and manner of deposit thereof so that such amounts would not be available when needed for payments to be made from the funds and accounts established by the Trust Agreement, (b) surrendering or limiting any remedies of the Treasurer under the Trust Agreement, or (c) being adverse to the interest of the Holders.

<u>Creation of Liens.</u> The Treasurer covenants in the Trust Agreement not to make any pledge or assignment of or create or suffer any lien or encumbrance upon the Pledged Receipts, prior to the pledge thereof under the Trust Agreement. The Treasurer also covenants in the Trust Agreement not to make any pledge or assignment of or create or suffer any lien or encumbrance upon the Pledged Receipts on a parity with the pledge thereof under the Trust Agreement, except Parity Obligations and as otherwise authorized

or permitted under the Trust Agreement, and, in the case of the bond service reserve account, under the applicable Series Bond Order. The Major New State Infrastructure Projects may not be pledged by the Treasurer.

Enforcement by Mandamus. The Treasurer has acknowledged that each provision of the Trust Agreement, the Bonds, the Additional Bonds, any applicable Certificate and Agreement, and all other agreements included in the proceedings relating to the Bonds and Additional Bonds, is binding upon the Treasurer, the Department and any other State agency or other person or body as may from time to time have authority under law to take such actions as may be necessary to perform all or any part of the duty required by such provision and each duty of the Treasurer, the Department or other State agency and their respective officers, members and employees undertaken or required pursuant thereto is established as a duty of the Treasurer and of each such member, officer, and employee having authority to perform such duty specifically enjoined by law resulting from an office, trust or station within the meaning of Section 2731.01 of the Ohio Revised Code providing for enforcement by writ of mandamus.

<u>Certain Reports.</u> The Treasurer will annually submit to the Director of Budget and Management a written report confirmed in part by the Trustee setting forth the estimated amount to become due under the Certificates and Agreements during the current state fiscal year and the ensuing two state fiscal years. Upon any determination by the Treasurer that a different amount than last reported will be required, the Treasurer will submit a revised written report superseding the next prior report.

On or before the 45th day preceding each Interest Payment Date, the Trustee will submit to the Treasurer, the Director of Budget and Management and the Department a written certificate setting forth (i) the net interest earned and credited to the Debt Service Account and not reflected on any previous similar certificate and any net interest to be earned and credited to the Debt Service Account prior to the next Interest Payment Date and not reflected in any prior certificate; (ii) any moneys credited to the Debt Service Account from any bond service reserve account as a result of excess funds being in such bond service reserve account and not reflected on any prior certificate and any funds to be so credited to the Debt Service Account prior to the next Interest Payment Date; (iii) any moneys credited to the Debt Service Account from the Rebate Fund and not reflected on any previous certificate and any funds to be so credited to the Debt Service Account prior to the next Interest Payment Date; (iv) any moneys remaining in the Administrative Expense Fund on the date of such certificate which moneys are to be credited immediately to the Debt Service Account; and (v) any moneys remaining in the Infrastructure Bank Obligations Fund which are to be credited to the Debt Service Fund. Such amounts shown on such certificate shall be a credit against the next deposit due under the Certificates and Agreements.

Events of Default and Remedies

Events of Default. The following events constitute Events of Default under the Trust Agreement:

- (i) Default by the Treasurer in the payment of any interest on any Bond or Additional Bond when due and payable;
- (ii) Default by the Treasurer in the payment of the principal of or any redemption premium on any Bond or Additional Bond when due and payable, whether at stated maturity or by mandatory redemption; or
- (iii) Any other default by the Treasurer to perform or observe any other covenants, agreements or conditions on its part contained in the Trust Agreement or the Bonds or Additional Bonds and continuance of such default for 60 days after written notice thereof, from the Trustee or the Holders of not less than 25 percent in aggregate principal amount of the affected Bonds or Additional Bonds then outstanding.

If an Event of Default occurs, the Trustee will give notice to the Treasurer within five days of receipt of actual knowledge thereof and to the applicable underwriters and to all Holders, paying agents,

bond registrars, authenticating agents and other agents within 90 days after having such knowledge, unless the Event of Default is cured or, in the case of an Event of Default under clause (iii) above, the Trustee determines that withholding notice is in the best interest of the Holders.

Remedies. If any Event of Default described in clauses (i) or (ii) above occurs and is not remedied, the Trustee shall proceed to protect and enforce its rights and the rights of the Holders of the Bonds and Additional Bonds, which includes the right to declare the principal of all Bonds and Additional Bonds and interest accrued thereon to be immediately due and payable. At any time after that declaration, and prior to the entry of judgment in the court for enforcement of the appointment of a receiver under the Trust Agreement, such declaration of acceleration shall be rescinded and annulled by the Trustee if all sums payable under the Trust Agreement (except the principal and interest on Bonds and Additional Bonds which have not matured by their terms and which are due and payable solely by reason of that declaration of acceleration), plus interest (to the extent permitted by law) on any overdue installments of interest have been paid or provided for, and all existing Events of Default shall have been cured.

If the Event of Default occurs under the Trust Agreement and is not remedied, the Trustee may, as an alternative or in addition to acceleration of the Bonds and Additional Bonds, enforce the rights of the Holders of the Bonds and Additional Bonds by mandamus or other suit, action or proceeding at law or in equity, bring suit upon the Bonds and Additional Bonds, enjoin unlawful activities or activities in violation of the rights of Holders under the Trust Agreement, or in the case of an Event of Default described in clause (i) and (ii) above apply to a court to appoint a receiver of the Pledged Receipts. If an Event of Default described in clause (iii) above occurs, the Trustee may and upon the written request of the Holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of the affected Bonds and Additional Bonds then outstanding shall, subject to certain conditions including indemnification of the Trustee, proceed in its own name to protect and enforce its rights and the rights of the Holders under the Trust Agreement by such remedies provided in the Trust Agreement as the Trustee, being advised by counsel, shall consider most effective to protect and enforce those rights.

The Trustee is not required to take notice or be deemed to have notice or knowledge of any default under the Trust Agreement, except Events of Default described in clauses (i) and (ii) above, unless the Trustee is specifically notified in writing of such default by the Treasurer or by the Holders of at least 10% of the aggregate principal amount of Bonds and Additional Bonds then outstanding, and in the absence of such notice so delivered, the Trustee may conclusively assume that there is no Event of Default except as described above.

As discussed above, the Trust Agreement provides for the appointment of a receiver to recover and administer the Pledged Receipts upon the occurrence of certain Events of Default, but the right to a receiver under Ohio law is discretionary with the court as equitable principles may dictate. The appointment of a receiver may not, accordingly, be available as a remedy for the Trustee or the Holders of the Bonds and Additional Bonds. Moreover, the Act withholds from any receiver the power to pledge additional revenues or income of the Treasurer to the payment of the Bond Service Charges and excludes the power to take possession of, mortgage, or cause the sale or other disposition of any State Infrastructure Project.

All moneys held or received by the Treasurer, the Trustee or the receiver after an Event of Default occurs, after the payment of the costs and expenses incurred in the collection thereof and the fees, expenses, liabilities and advances of the Trustee or the receiver, shall be applied as follows: (i) unless the principal of all the Bonds and Additional Bonds has become or been declared due and payable, (a) first, to the payment of all installments of interest then due on the Bonds and Additional Bonds, in the order of the maturity of the installments of such interest and, if the amount available is not sufficient to pay in full any particular installment, then to the payment ratably, according to the amounts due on such installment, to the persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination or privilege except as to any difference in the respective rates of interest specified on the Bonds and Additional Bonds; and (b) next, to the payment of unpaid principal of any of the Bonds and Additional Bonds which have become due (other than Bonds and Additional Bonds previously called for redemption for the payment of which moneys are held pursuant to the provisions of the Trust Agreement) whether at stated maturity, by redemption or pursuant

to any mandatory sinking fund requirements, in the order of their due dates, with interest, and if the amount is insufficient to pay in full all Bonds and Additional Bonds, then to the payment ratably according to the amount of principal due on that date to the persons entitled thereto without discrimination or privilege; or (ii) if the principal of all the Bonds and Additional Bonds has become or been declared due and payable, to the payment of principal and interest then due and unpaid upon the Bonds or Additional Bonds, without preference or priority of principal over interest or of interest over principal, or any installment of interest over any other installment of interest, or of any Bond or Additional Bond over any other Bond or Additional Bond, ratably, according to the amounts due respectively for principal and interest to the persons entitled thereto without discrimination or privilege except as to any difference in the respective rates of interest specified in the Bonds and Additional Bonds; or (iii) if the principal of all Bonds and Additional Bonds has been declared due and payable, and if such declaration shall thereafter have been rescinded and annulled as provided in the Trust Agreement then, subject to clause (ii) of this paragraph in the event that the principal of all such Bonds shall later become due and payable, the moneys shall be deposited in the Debt Service Account and applied in accordance with the provisions of the Bond Orders. Whenever moneys are to be applied as described above, those moneys are to be applied at the times the Trustee determines, having due regard to the amount of those moneys available for application and the likelihood of additional moneys becoming available for application in the future.

Whenever the Trustee directs the application of those moneys, it is required to fix the date (which shall be an Interest Payment Date with respect to the Bonds and Additional Bonds unless the Trustee will deem another date more suitable) upon which the application is to be made and upon that date interest on the amounts of principal to be paid on that date, and for which moneys are available, will cease to accrue. The Trustee is required to give notice as it deems appropriate of the deposit of any such moneys and of the fixing of any such date, all consistent with the requirements of the Bond Orders for the establishment of, and for giving notice of, a special record date for the payment of overdue interest. The Trustee is not required to direct payment of principal or premium to the Holders of any Bond or Additional Bond until that Bond or Additional Bond is presented to the Trustee for appropriate notation of partial payment or for cancellation if fully paid.

No Holder of any Bond or Additional Bond has any right to institute any suit, action or proceeding for the enforcement of any provision of the Trust Agreement or for the execution of any trust thereof or for the appointment of a receiver or any other remedy thereunder unless (i) an Event of Default under the Trust Agreement has occurred and is continuing; (ii) that Holder has previously given to the Trustee written notice of the Event of Default; (iii) the Holders of at least 25 percent in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds and Additional Bonds then outstanding have filed a written request with the Trustee and have afforded the Trustee reasonable opportunity either to proceed to exercise its powers or to institute such action, suit or proceeding in its own name; (iv) such Holders have offered the Trustee adequate indemnity as provided in the Trust Agreement; and (v) the Trustee has failed or refused to comply with such request after receipt by it of such notice, request and offer of indemnity. No one or more Holders of any Bonds or Additional Bonds have any right in any manner whatsoever to affect, disturb or prejudice the pledge created by the Trust Agreement or to enforce any right thereunder except in the manner therein provided, and all actions, suits and proceedings shall be instituted and maintained in the manner therein provided and for equal benefit of the Holders of all outstanding Bonds and Additional Bonds.

The Bond Insurer shall be entitled to give consent or direction on behalf of and in the place of the Holders of the Insured Bonds whenever and wherever the Holders of the Insured Bonds shall have such rights under the terms of the Trust Agreement. See "RIGHTS OF BOND INSURER."

Waiver of Events of Default

Except as may otherwise be provided in any Supplemental Trust Agreement, at any time the Trustee may, in its discretion, waive any Event of Default under the Trust Agreement and its consequences and rescind any declaration of maturity of principal, and the Trustee must waive any Event of Default or rescind any declaration of maturity of principal upon the written request of the Holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of all the outstanding Bonds and Additional Bonds. The Trustee will not, however, waive or rescind any Event of Default resulting from a failure to pay Bond Service Charges on the Bonds and Additional Bonds when due or rescind any declaration of maturity in connection therewith unless at the time of the waiver or rescission payment of all overdue installments of interest and principal, not including principal and interest due solely by virtue of acceleration, have been made or provided for.

Supplemental Trust Agreements

Without the consent of or notice to the Holders of the Bonds and Additional Bonds, the Treasurer and Trustee may enter into Supplemental Trust Agreements for any one or more of the following purposes: (i) to cure any ambiguity, inconsistency or formal defect or omission in the Trust Agreement; (ii) to grant or to confer upon the Trustee for the benefit of the Holders additional rights, remedies, powers or authority that lawfully may be granted to or conferred upon the Holders or the Trustee; (iii) to subject additional revenues or receipts to the pledge of the Trust Agreement; (iv) to add to the covenants and agreements of the State, State agencies or the Treasurer contained in the Trust Agreement, other covenants and agreements to be observed for the protection of the Holders or to surrender or limit any right or power of the Treasurer reserved to or conferred upon the State, state agencies or the Treasurer in the Trust Agreement; (v) to evidence any succession to the Treasurer or to any state agency and the assumption by that successor of the covenants and agreements of the Treasurer or the state agency, respectively, in the Trust Agreement and the Bonds and Additional Bonds; (vi) to provide for the issuance of fully registered bonds in accordance with the General Bond Order; (vii) to provide for the issuance of Additional Bonds in forms other than fully registered bonds if, in the opinion of nationally recognized counsel selected by the Treasurer, such amendments would not result in the interest on any of the Bonds or Additional Bonds outstanding becoming subject to federal income taxation; (viii) to permit the exchange of Bonds and Additional Bonds at the option of the Holder for coupon Bonds and Additional Bonds in accordance with the Trust Agreement if, in the opinion of nationally recognized counsel selected by the Treasurer, that exchange would not result in the interest on any of the Bonds or Additional Bonds outstanding becoming subject to federal income taxation; (ix) to permit the use of Book-Entry Form to identify the owner of an interest in a Bond or an Additional Bond: (x) to permit the Trustee to comply with any obligations imposed by law; (xi) to specify further duties and responsibilities of, and to define further the relationship among, the Trustee, and any bond registrar, authenticating agent, paying agent or other agent for the Bonds or Additional Bonds; (xii) to achieve compliance with any applicable federal securities or tax law; (xiii) to permit the appropriate calculation, if any, of any amount due to the United States of America or in lieu or rebate as permitted under the Trust Agreement; (xiv) to permit or provide for Interest Rate Hedges, as defined in Section 9.98(L) of the Ohio Revised Code, as authorized by Section 9.982(B)(3) of the Ohio Revised Code, with respect to obligations issued under the Trust Agreement, provided, however, that prior to any such interest rate hedge becoming effective: (a) any necessary Certificate and Agreement will have been executed and delivered providing for money under that Certificate and Agreement estimated to be sufficient to pay the cost and expenses of providing such Interest Rate Hedge and any other fees, costs and expenses in connection therewith, and the amounts to be paid pursuant to the Certificate and Agreement will have been appropriated in an amount estimated to be sufficient for the remainder of the then current State fiscal biennium, and (b) the Director of Budget and Management will have included, in any then existing budget request for the Department for the next succeeding state fiscal biennium, amounts sufficient to pay all amounts estimated to be due under such Certificate and Agreement during such biennium; and (xv) to permit any other amendment not prejudicial to the Trustee or the Holders of the Bonds and Additional Bonds.

In addition, with the consent of the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the affected Bonds and Additional Bonds then outstanding (exclusive of Bonds and Additional

Bonds then held or owned by the Treasurer), the Trustee and the Treasurer may enter into other Supplemental Trust Agreements for the purpose of modifying, altering, amending, adding to or rescinding any of the terms or provisions thereof, provided that no Supplemental Trust Agreement may be entered into which provides for (i) an extension of the maturity of the principal of or the interest on any Bond or Additional Bond or a reduction in the principal amount of any Bond or Additional Bond or the rate of interest or redemption premium on any Bond or Additional Bond or reduction in the amount or extension of the time of any payment required by any mandatory sinking fund requirements relating to the Bonds and Additional Bonds, without the consent of the Holder of each Bond or Additional Bonds of the Bonds and Additional Bonds required for consent to such Supplemental Trust Agreement without the consent of the Holders of all of the Bonds and Additional Bonds then outstanding.

Where the consent of the Holders of the Bonds and Additional Bonds is required, procedures are established in the Trust Agreement for notice to the Holders and for the execution and filing of the requisite consents. Any consent is binding upon the Holders of the Bonds and Additional Bonds giving such consent and upon any subsequent Holders of the Bonds and Additional Bonds unless such consent is revoked in writing prior to the execution by the Trustee of the Supplemental Trust Agreement. If the Holders of the required percentage in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds and Additional Bonds then outstanding have consented to the execution of a Supplemental Trust Agreement as provided in the Trust Agreement, no Holder of any Bond or Additional Bond has any right to object to the execution of the Supplemental Trust Agreement or to the terms and provisions contained therein or the operations thereof, to question the propriety of the execution thereof or to enjoin or restrain the Treasurer or the Trustee from executing or taking action pursuant to the same.

The Bond Insurer shall be entitled to give consent or direction on behalf of and in the place of the Holders of the Insured Bonds whenever and wherever the Holders of the Insured Bonds shall have such rights under the terms of the Trust Agreement. See "RIGHTS OF BOND INSURER."

Defeasance

If the State shall pay or cause to be paid, or there shall otherwise be paid all Bond Service Charges due or to become due thereon, and provision is made for paying all other sums payable under the Trust Agreement by the State, then the Trust Agreement will be null and void and the obligations, covenants and agreements of the Treasurer and the pledge created by the Trust Agreement will be fully discharged and satisfied. Any Bonds and Additional Bonds will be deemed to have been so paid and discharged if the Trustee holds in trust for and irrevocably committed thereto (i) sufficient moneys, or (ii) direct obligations of the United States of America which shall be certified by an independent firm of certified public accountants of national reputation to be of such maturities and interest payment dates and bear such interest as will, without further investment, when added with any moneys also deposited, be sufficient in the aggregate to pay at maturity or upon redemption, the Bond Service Charges on the Bonds and Additional Bonds; provided that, with respect to the Bonds and Additional Bonds which are to be redeemed prior to the maturity thereof, notice of such redemption has been duly given or provisions satisfactory to the Trustee have been made for the giving of such notice.

Non-presentment of Bonds

In the event any Bond is not presented for payment when the principal thereof is due or a check or draft for interest is uncashed, and if moneys sufficient to pay the principal or that check or draft have been made available by the Trustee for the benefit of the Holder or payee thereof, all liability of the State or the Treasurer to the Holder or payee for payment thereof will cease and be completely discharged, and it will be the duty of the Paying Agent to hold such moneys in trust, without liability for interest thereon, for the benefit of the Holder of the Bond or the payee of that check or draft, who thereafter will be restricted exclusively to such moneys for any claim of whatever nature on its part under the Trust Agreement or on or with respect to said Bond or that check or draft. Moneys so held by the Paying Agent and which remain unclaimed for three years after the due date of the payment will be paid to the Treasurer and thereafter the Holder of that Bond or the payee of that check or draft may look only to the

Treasurer for payment and then only in the amounts so received by the Treasurer without any interest thereon, and the Paying Agent and Trustee will have no further responsibility with respect to such moneys.

Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays

If any Interest Payment Date, date of maturity of the principal of any Bonds or date fixed for redemption of any Bonds is not a Business Day (the "applicable date" for purposes of this Section), then payment of the interest, principal and any redemption premium need not be made by the Trustee or any Paying Agent until the next succeeding Business Day with the same force and effect as if the such payment was made on the applicable date and no interest shall accrue for the period after that date.

Amendments to the General Bond Order and Trust Agreement

A proposed Ninth Supplemental Trust Agreement would amend the definition of Pledged Federal Highway Receipts to exclude from that definition amounts received as repayment of loans to the State Infrastructure Bank. The amendment to that definition will become effective upon the issuance of the Bonds when the Holders of a majority of the aggregate principal amount of Bonds and Additional Bonds outstanding under the Trust Agreement will have consented to that amendment. By purchasing the Bonds, the Holders of the Bonds irrevocably consent to the Trustee's execution of the Ninth Supplemental Trust Agreement and to the definitions of Pledged Federal Highway Receipts. Concurrently with the issuance of its Policy on the Insured Bonds, the Bond Insurer will irrevocably consent to the proposed Ninth Supplemental Trust Agreement on behalf of the Holders of the Insured Bonds.

The Seventh Supplemental Trust Agreement amended certain provisions of the General Bond Order. The General Bond Order was amended to amend the definition of "Pledged Receipts" to cure an ambiguity in that definition that could be construed to permit federal highway funds on deposit in the State Infrastructure Bank to be pledged to secure other indebtedness and that potentially created a pledge of non-federal funds in the State Infrastructure Bank that were never intended to be pledged.

In addition to authorizing the issuance of the Series 2005-1 Bonds, the Sixth Supplemental Trust Agreement amended certain provisions of the General Bond Order. The General Bond Order was amended such that, as permitted by amendments to the Act, Additional Bonds may be issued under the Trust Agreement for the purpose of refunding District Obligations.

In addition to authorizing the issuance of the Series 2001-1 Bonds, the Third Supplemental Trust Agreement amended certain provisions of the General Bond Order and the Original Trust Agreement, effective as to all Bonds and Additional Bonds outstanding upon the payment or deemed payment (defeasance) of all the Series 1998-1 Bonds and Series 1999-1 Bonds. The General Bond Order was amended to permit the Treasurer to amend the Trust Agreement and the Certificate and Agreement related to each series in ways that do not materially adversely affect the bondholders and to permit the Treasurer to issue obligations which are subordinate to the Bonds. Additionally, the Treasurer entered into a Certificate and Agreement in connection with the issuance of the Series 2001-1 Bonds which will permit, after defeasance of the Series 1998-1 Bonds and the Series 1999-1 Bonds, the Treasurer to issue Additional Bonds if the total amount of Bond Service Charges payable with respect to the Series 2001-1 Bonds, other Additional Bonds and the Bonds in any State Fiscal Year plus the total amount payable as debt service on all Parity Obligations in that State Fiscal Year would not exceed one-fifth of the average Federal Highway Receipts received by the Department in the three immediately previous State Fiscal Years. Such Certificate and Agreement also eliminates, after defeasance of the Series 1998-1 Bonds and the Series 1999-1 Bonds, the requirement that the Department submit a written request that the Governor and the Director of Budget and Management seek additional appropriations from the General Assembly if Title 23 Moneys are unavailable for payment of the Bond Service Charges with respect to the Bonds and Additional Bonds. The Series 1998-1 Bonds and the Series 1999-1 Bonds are being defeased simultaneously with the issuance of the Bonds.

TRUSTEE

The Trustee, U.S. Bank National Association, is a national banking association organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America and is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers in the State.

The Trustee has undertaken to perform such duties as are specifically set forth in the Trust Agreement. The Trustee will exercise such of the rights and powers vested in it by the Trust Agreement and use the same degree of care and skill in its exercise as an ordinarily prudent corporate trustee under a trust agreement securing securities of a public agency, and is not obligated to take any action until it has received a satisfactory indemnity bond for its expenses and to protect it against any liability other than liability resulting from its negligence or willful default. The permissive rights of the Trustee to do things under the Trust Agreement will not be construed as a duty and the Trustee will not be answerable for acts or events other than its negligence or willful default.

RIGHTS OF BOND INSURER

While the Policy for the Insured Bonds is in effect and Financial Security is not in default of its obligations thereunder, the following provisions apply with respect to the Insured Bonds.

Consent of Financial Security

Financial Security shall be entitled to give consent or direction on behalf of and in the place of any consent or direction to be given by the Holders of the Insured Bonds pursuant to the Trust Agreement, including, but not limited to the execution of a Supplemental Trust Agreement requiring consent of the Holders of the Insured Bonds pursuant to the Trust Agreement. So long as the Policy shall be in effect, the Holders of the Insured Bonds will have no right to exercise such rights or give such consents or directions under the Trust Agreement. Any provision of the Trust Agreement expressly recognizing or granting rights in or to Financial Security may not be amended in any manner that affects the rights of Financial Security under the Trust Agreement without the prior written consent of the Financial Security.

No grace period for a covenant default shall exceed 30 days, nor be extended for more than 60 days, without the prior written consent of Financial Security. No grace period shall be permitted for payment defaults.

The maturity of Insured Bonds may not be accelerated without the consent of Financial Security and in the event the maturity of the Insured Bonds is accelerated, Financial Security may elect, in its sole discretion, to pay accelerated principal and interest accrued on such principal to the date of acceleration (to the extent unpaid by the Treasurer) and the Trustee will be required to accept such amounts. Upon payment of such accelerated principal and interest accrued to the acceleration date as provided above, Financial Security's obligations under the Policy with respect to such Insured Bonds will be fully discharged.

Claims upon the Policy and Payments by and to Financial Security

Amounts paid by Financial Security under the Policy will not be deemed paid for purposes of the Trust Agreement and shall remain Outstanding and continue to be due and owing until paid by the Treasurer in accordance with the Trust Agreement. The Trust Agreement will not be discharged unless all amounts due or to become due to Financial Security have been paid in full or duly provided for.

If, by 1:00 p.m., New York City time, on the Business Day prior to the related scheduled interest payment date or principal payment date ("Payment Date") there is not on deposit with the Trustee, after making all transfers and deposits required under the Trust Agreement, moneys sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Insured Bonds due on such Payment Date, the Trustee will make a claim under the Policy and give notice to Financial Security and to its designated agent (if any) (the "Insurer's

Fiscal Agent") by telephone of the amount of such deficiency, and the allocation of such deficiency between the amount required to pay interest on the Insured Bonds and the amount required to pay principal of the Insured Bonds, confirmed in writing to Financial Security and its Fiscal Agent (if any) by 12:00 noon, New York City time, on such day by filling in the form of Notice of Claim and Certificate delivered with the Policy.

The Trustee will designate any portion of payment of principal on Insured Bonds paid by Financial Security, whether by virtue of mandatory sinking fund redemption, maturity or other advancement of maturity, on its books as a reduction in the principal amount of Insured Bonds registered to the then current bondholder, whether DTC or its nominee or otherwise, and will issue a replacement bond to Financial Security, registered in the name of Financial Security Assurance Inc., in a principal amount equal to the amount of principal so paid (without regard to authorized denominations); provided that the Trustee's failure to so designate any payment or issue any replacement bond will have no effect on the amount of principal or interest payable by the Treasurer on any Insured Bond or the subrogation rights of Financial Security.

The Trustee will keep a complete and accurate record of all funds deposited by Financial Security into the Policy Payments Account (defined below) and the allocation of such funds to payment of interest on and principal paid in respect of any Insured Bond. Financial Security will have the right to inspect such records at reasonable times upon reasonable notice to the Trustee.

Upon payment of a claim under the Policy, the Trustee will establish a separate special purpose trust account for the benefit of bondholders referred to herein as the "Policy Payments Account" and over which the Trustee will have exclusive control and sole right of withdrawal. The Trustee will receive any amount paid under the Policy in trust on behalf of bondholders and will deposit any such amount in the Policy Payments Account and distribute such amount only for purposes of making the payments for which a claim was made. Such amounts will be disbursed by the Trustee to bondholders in the same manner as principal and interest payments are to be made with respect to the Insured Bonds under the sections hereof regarding payment of Insured Bonds. It will not be necessary for such payments to be made by checks or wire transfers separate from the check or wire transfer used to pay debt service with other funds available to make such payments. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary otherwise set forth in the Trust Agreement, and to the extent permitted by law, in the event amounts paid under the Policy are applied to claims for payment of principal of or interest on the Insured Bonds, interest on such principal of and interest on such Insured Bonds will accrue and be payable from the date of such payment at the greater of (i) the per annum rate of interest, publicly announced from time to time by JPMorgan Chase Bank or its successor at its principal office in the City of New York, as its prime or base lending rate plus 3%, and (ii) the then applicable rate of interest on the Insured Bonds provided that in no event shall such rate exceed the maximum rate permissible under applicable usury or similar laws limiting interest rates.

Funds held in the Policy Payments Account will not be invested by the Trustee and may not be applied to satisfy any costs, expenses or liabilities of the Trustee. Any funds remaining in the Policy Payments Account following an Insured Bond payment date will promptly be remitted to Financial Security.

Financial Security will, to the extent it makes any payment of principal of or interest on the Insured Bonds, become subrogated to the rights of the recipients of such payments in accordance with the terms of the Policy. The obligations to Financial Security will survive discharge or termination of the Related Documents.

Financial Security is entitled to pay principal or interest on the Insured Bonds that shall become Due for Payment but shall be unpaid by reason of Nonpayment by the Treasurer (as such terms are defined in the Policy) and any amounts due on the Insured Bonds as a result of acceleration of the maturity thereof in accordance with the Trust Agreement, whether or not Financial Security has received a Notice of Nonpayment (as such terms are defined in the Insurance Policy) or a claim upon the Policy.

LITIGATION

There is no litigation pending contesting the validity of the Bonds or the proceedings for their authorization, issuance, sale, execution and delivery. A no-litigation certificate to that effect will be delivered to the original purchaser at the time of original delivery of the Bonds.

The State is a party to various legal proceedings, seeking damages or injunctive relief and generally incidental to its operations, but unrelated to the security for the Bonds. The ultimate disposition of these proceedings is not presently determinable, but in the opinion of the Ohio Attorney General will not have a material adverse effect on the Bonds or the security for the Bonds.

RATINGS

The Insured Bonds have been rated "Aaa" by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., "AAA" by Standard & Poor's Ratings Services and "AAA" by Fitch Ratings, each with the understanding that the Policy insuring the payment when due of the principal of and interest on the Insured Bonds will be issued by Bond Insurer. See "BOND INSURANCE." In addition, the Insured Bonds have been given an underlying rating of, and the Bonds maturing June 15, 2008 through June 15, 2011 have been rated, "Aa2" by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., "AA" by Standard & Poor's Ratings Services and "AA-" by Fitch Ratings. Such ratings reflect only the respective views of such rating agencies. Any explanation of the significance of the ratings may only be obtained from the respective rating agency. The State furnished each rating agency with certain information and materials, some of which may not have been included in this Official Statement, relating to the Bonds, the State and the Department. Generally, rating agencies base their ratings on such information and other investigations, studies and assumptions they deem appropriate. There can be no assurance that the ratings will continue for any period of time or that they will not be revised or withdrawn entirely by the respective rating agency, if in its judgment circumstances so warrant. Any revision or withdrawal of a rating may have an effect on the marketability and market price of the Bonds.

ELIGIBILITY UNDER OHIO LAW FOR INVESTMENT AND AS SECURITY FOR THE DEPOSIT OF PUBLIC MONEY

To the extent that a particular investor is governed by Ohio law with respect to its investments, and subject to any applicable limitations under other provisions of Ohio law, under the Act, the Bonds are lawful investments for banks, societies for savings, savings and loan associations, deposit guarantee associations, trust companies, trustees, fiduciaries, insurance companies (including domestic for life and domestic not for life), trustees or other officers having charge of sinking and bond retirement or other special funds of political subdivisions and taxing districts of the State of Ohio, the commissioners of the sinking fund of the State of Ohio, the administrator of workers' compensation, the state teachers retirement system, the public employees retirement system, the school employees retirement system, and the Ohio police and fire pension fund, notwithstanding any other provisions of the Ohio Revised Code or rules adopted pursuant to the Ohio Revised Code by any agency of the State with respect to investments by them.

The Act provides that the Bonds are acceptable under Ohio law as security for the deposit of public moneys.

Each Book-Entry Interest Owner of the Bonds should make its own determination as to such matters of legality of investment in, or pledge of book-entry interests in, the Bonds.

TAX MATTERS

In the opinion of Calfee, Halter & Griswold LLP and Lumpkin McCrary LLP, Co-Bond Counsel, under existing law and assuming compliance with certain covenants (i) interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and is not an item of tax preference under Section 57 of the Code for purposes of the alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations; and (ii) interest on the Bonds, and any profit made on their sale, exchange, transfer or other disposition, are exempt from the Ohio personal income tax, the Ohio commercial activity tax, the net income base of the Ohio corporate franchise tax and income taxes imposed by municipalities or other political subdivisions in Ohio. Co-Bond Counsel will express no opinion as to any other federal, state or local tax consequences regarding the Bonds.

The opinions on tax matters will be based on and will assume the accuracy of certain representations and certifications, and continuing compliance with certain covenants, of the Treasurer to be contained in the transcript of proceedings and which are intended to evidence and assure the foregoing, including that the Bonds are and will remain obligations the interest on which is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Co-Bond Counsel will not independently verify the accuracy of the representations and certifications made by the Treasurer.

The Code prescribes a number of qualifications and conditions for the interest on state and local government obligations to be and to remain excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes, some of which, including provisions for potential payments by the State to the federal government, require future or continued compliance after issuance in order for the interest to be and to remain so excludable from the date of issuance. Noncompliance with these requirements could cause the interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes and to be subject to federal income tax retroactively to the date of their issuance. The Treasurer has covenanted to take all actions required for the interest on the Bonds to be and to remain excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and not to take any actions that would adversely affect that exclusion.

Under Code provisions applicable only to corporations (as defined for federal income tax purposes), a portion of the excess of adjusted current earnings (which includes interest on all tax-exempt bonds, including the Bonds) over other alternative minimum taxable income, is included in alternative minimum taxable income which may be subject to a corporate alternative minimum tax. In addition, interest on the Bonds may also be subject to a branch profits tax imposed on certain foreign corporations doing business in the United States and to a tax imposed on excess net passive income of certain S corporations.

Under the Code, the exclusion of interest from gross income for federal income tax purposes can have certain adverse federal income tax consequences on items of income, deductions or credits for certain taxpayers, including financial institutions, certain insurance companies, recipients of Social Security and Railroad Retirement benefits, those that are deemed to incur or continue indebtedness to acquire or carry tax-exempt obligations, and individuals otherwise eligible for the earned income credit. The applicability and extent of these or other tax consequences will depend upon the particular tax status or other tax items of the owner of the Bonds or of book-entry interests. Co-Bond Counsel will express no opinion regarding such consequences.

From time to time legislative proposals are pending in Congress or the Ohio legislature that would, if enacted, alter or amend one or more of the federal or state tax matters discussed herein in certain respects or that would adversely affect the market value of the Bonds. In addition, federal or state judicial decisions may be rendered, or administrative actions taken by taxing authorities, which could also impact the federal or state tax matters discussed herein or that would adversely affect the market value of the Bonds. Neither the form nor enactment of any of such proposals can be predicted, and there can be no assurance that any such proposals or any judicial decisions or administrative actions, will not apply, either retroactively or prospectively, to the Bonds.

On May 21, 2007, the <u>United States Supreme Court agreed to hear Dep't of Revenue of Kentucky v. Davis.</u> In the <u>Davis</u> case, the Kentucky Court of Appeals held that Kentucky's exemption from taxation of interest on bonds issued by Kentucky or its political subdivisions and its taxation of interest on bonds issued by other states or their political subdivisions violates the Commerce Clause of the United States Constitution. The State exempts from taxation interest on bonds issued by the State or its political subdivisions and taxes interest on bonds issued by other states or their political subdivisions. It is not possible to predict how the United States Supreme Court will decide the <u>Davis</u> case or to predict any change in state law that would be occasioned by the United States Supreme Court's affirmation of the <u>Davis</u> decision, nor is it possible to predict the effect, if any, of that affirmation or any change in state law on the tax status of interest or other income on the Bonds for state tax purposes or on the market value of the Bonds.

Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisers regarding pending or proposed federal and state tax legislation, the <u>Davis</u> case and other court proceedings, and prospective purchasers of the Bonds at other than their original issuance at the respective prices indicated on the inside cover of this Official Statement should also consult their own tax advisers regarding other tax considerations such as the consequences of market discount, as to all of which Bond Counsel expresses no opinion.

The discussion of tax matters in this Official Statement applies only in the case of purchasers of Bonds at their original issuance. It does not address any other tax consequences, such as, among others, the consequence of the existence of any market discount to subsequent purchasers of the Bonds.

The foregoing is not intended as a detailed or comprehensive description of all possible tax consequences of purchasing, holding or disposing of the Bonds. Persons considering the purchase of Bonds should consult with their tax advisors as to the consequences of buying, holding or disposing of Bonds and their particular circumstances.

Original Issue Discount and Original Issue Premium

Certain of the Bonds ("Discount Bonds") may be offered and sold to the public at an original issue discount ("OID"). OID is the excess of the stated redemption price at maturity (the face amount) over the "issue price" of such Bonds. The issue price of a Discount Bond is the initial offering price to the public (other than to bond houses, brokers or similar persons acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers) at which a substantial amount of the Discount Bonds of the same maturity are sold pursuant to that offering. For federal income tax purposes, OID accrues to the owner of a Discount Bond (or a Book-entry interest in a Discount Bond) over the period to maturity based on the constant interest rate method, compounded semiannually (or over such shorter permitted compounding interval selected by the owner). With respect to an initial purchaser of a Discount Bond (or a Book-entry interest in a Discount Bond) at its issue price, the portion of OID that accrues during the period that purchaser owns the Discount Bond or Book-entry interest (i) is interest excludable from that purchaser's gross income for federal income tax purposes to the same extent and subject to the same considerations discussed above as to other interest on the Bonds, and (ii) is added to that purchaser's tax basis for purposes of determining gain or loss on the maturity, redemption, prior sale or other disposition of that Discount Bond or Bookentry interest. A purchaser of a Discount Bond at the issue price in the initial public offering who holds that Bond to maturity will realize no gain or loss upon retirement of that Bond.

Certain of the Bonds ("Premium Bonds") may be offered and sold to the public at an issue price in excess of their stated redemption price (the principal amount) at maturity. That excess constitutes amortizable bond premium. For federal income tax purposes, bond premium is amortized over the period to maturity of a Premium Bond, based on the yield to maturity of such Premium Bond, Compounded semiannually. No portion of that bond premium is deductible by the owner of a Premium Bond. For purposes of determining the owner's gain or loss on the sale, redemption (including redemption at maturity) or other disposition of a Premium Bond, the owner's tax basis in the Premium Bond is reduced by the amount of bond premium that accrues during the period of ownership. As a result, an owner may realize taxable gain for federal income tax purposes upon the sale or other

disposition of a Premium Bond. A purchaser of a Premium Bond at its issue price in the initial public offering who holds that Bond to maturity will realize no gain or loss upon the retirement of that Bond.

Owners of Discount or Premium Bonds (or Book-entry interests in them) should consult their own tax advisers as to the determination for federal income tax purposes of the amount of OID or amortizable bond premium properly accruable in any period with respect to the Discount or Premium Bonds and as to other federal tax consequences and the treatment of OID and amortizable bond premium for state and local tax purposes.

CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS

Legal matters incident to the issuance of the Bonds and certain tax matters regarding the Bonds (see "TAX MATTERS" herein) are subject to the legal opinion of Calfee Halter & Griswold LLP and Lumpkin McCrary LLP, Co-Bond Counsel. Signed copies of the Bond Counsel opinion, dated as of, and speaking only as of, the date of original delivery of the Bonds, will be delivered to the Underwriters at the time of that original delivery. The proposed text of the legal opinion of Co-Bond Counsel is set forth as Appendix A hereto. The legal opinion to be delivered may vary from this text if necessary to reflect facts and law on the date of delivery. The opinion will speak only as of its date, and subsequent distribution of the opinion by recirculation of the Official Statement or otherwise shall create no implication that Co-Bond Counsel have reviewed or expressed any opinion concerning any of the matters referred to in the opinion subsequent to its date.

Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriters by Tucker Ellis & West LLP and Davis, Eoff & Elliott LLC, Co-Underwriters' Counsel. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Department and for the Treasurer by their Counsel, the Attorney General of Ohio, Marc Dann.

UNDERWRITING

The Underwriters have jointly and severally agreed, subject to certain conditions, to purchase the Bonds from the Treasurer at a price of \$218,241,638.95 (consisting of the principal amount of the Bonds plus net original issue premium of \$9,145,486.95 and less Underwriters' discount of \$903,848.00). The Underwriters are obligated to purchase all of the Bonds if any are purchased. The Bonds may be offered and sold by the Underwriters to certain dealers at prices lower than the public offering prices, and the public offering prices may be changed from time to time.

The Underwriters have provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement. The Underwriters have reviewed the information in this official statement in accordance with, and as part of, their respective responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriters do not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

The Treasurer has retained Public Financial Management, Inc. (the "Financial Advisor") with respect to the State's issuance of the Bonds. The Financial Advisor is not obligated to undertake, and has not undertaken to make, an independent verification or to assume responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or fairness of the information contained in the Official Statement. Public Financial Management, Inc. is an independent advisory firm and is not engaged in the business of underwriting, trading or distributing municipal securities or other public securities.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

The Treasurer has agreed, for the benefit of the Holders and Book-Entry Interest Owners of the Bonds, in accordance with SEC Rule 15c2-12 to provide or cause to be provided such financial

information and operating data ("Annual Information"), audited financial statements and notices, in such manner as may be required for purposes of paragraph (b)(5)(i) of SEC Rule 15c2-12 (the "Continuing Disclosure Agreement"), including specifically the following:

- 1. To each SEC-designated nationally recognized municipal securities information repository ("NRMSIR") and to the Ohio state information depository ("SID"):
 - (a) Annual Information for each State Fiscal Year (beginning with State Fiscal Year 2008) not later than the 90th day following the end of the State Fiscal Year (or, if that is not a State business day, the next State business day), consisting of annual financial information and operating data of the type included in this Official Statement under the caption "DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS," the tables regarding Title 23 Moneys set forth in this Official Statement under the caption "SOURCES OF FUNDS FOR PAYMENT OF BONDS." The Director of Budget and Management has agreed to provide the Annual Information. The Annual Information may be provided by reference to other documents, such as the State's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and subsequent final Official Statements relating to other bonds issued by the State.
 - (b) When and if available, audited general purpose financial statements of the State for each State Fiscal Year. The Treasurer expects such financial statements to be provided by the Director of Budget and Management, that they will be available separately from the Annual Information, and that the accounting principles to be applied in their preparation will be as described under and by reference to the State's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
- 2. To each NRMSIR or to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board ("MSRB"), and to the SID, in a timely manner, notice of:
 - (a) The occurrence of any of the following events, within the meaning of the Rule, with respect to the Bonds, if material: principal and interest payment delinquencies; non-payment related defaults; unscheduled draws on any debt service reserves or credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the Bonds; modifications to rights of Holders or Book-Entry Interest Owners; bond calls; defeasances; release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds; and rating changes. There are initially no credit enhancements or credit or liquidity providers applicable to the Bonds except the Policy, or any property (except the Pledged Receipts) securing their repayment;
 - (b) The failure to provide the Annual Information within the time specified above; and
 - (c) Any change in the accounting principles applied in the preparation of the annual financial statements, any change in State Fiscal Year, any failure of the General Assembly to appropriate moneys for the purpose of paying costs to be incurred by the State to perform the Continuing Disclosure Agreement for the applicable state fiscal period (biennium), and termination of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

The Treasurer will reserve the right to amend the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, and to obtain the waiver of non-compliance with any provision of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, as may be necessary or appropriate to achieve the Treasurer's or the State's compliance with any applicable federal securities law or rules, to cure any ambiguity, inconsistency or formal defect or omission, and to address any change in circumstances arising from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or

change in the identity, nature, or status of the Treasurer. Any such amendment or waiver will not be effective unless the Continuing Disclosure Agreement (as amended or taking into account such waiver) would have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the primary offering of the Bonds, after taking into account any applicable amendments to or official interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances, and until the Treasurer shall have received either (i) a written opinion of bond or other qualified independent special counsel selected by the Treasurer that the amendment or waiver would not materially impair the interest of Holders or Book-Entry Interest Owners of the Bonds, or (ii) the written consent to the amendment, or waiver, by the Holders of at least a majority of the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the applicable Bonds.

The Continuing Disclosure Agreement will be solely for the benefit of the Holders and Book-Entry Interest Owners of the Bonds. The right to enforce the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement is limited to the extent permitted by law, to an action for mandamus or specific performance to compel compliance of the obligations of the Treasurer and the State under the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

In order to provide certain continuing disclosure with respect to the Bonds in accordance with the Rule, the State has entered into a Disclosure Dissemination Agent Agreement (the "Disclosure Dissemination Agreement") for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds with Digital Assurance Certification, L.L.C. ("DAC"), under which the State has designated DAC as Disclosure Dissemination Agent (the "Disclosure Dissemination Agent").

The Disclosure Dissemination Agent has only the duties specified in the Disclosure Dissemination Agreement. The Disclosure Dissemination Agent's obligation to deliver the information at the times and with the contents described in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement is limited to the extent the State has provided that information to the Disclosure Dissemination Agent as required by the Disclosure Dissemination Agreement. The Disclosure Dissemination Agent has no duty with respect to the content of any disclosures or notice made pursuant to the terms of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement or duty or obligation to review or verify any information in the Annual Report, Audited Financial Statements, notice of Notice Event or Voluntary Report (all as defined in the Disclosure Dissemination Agreement), or any other information, disclosure or notices provided to it by the State, and the Disclosure Dissemination Agent shall not be deemed to be acting in any fiduciary capacity for the State, the holders of the Bonds or any other party. The Disclosure Dissemination Agent has no responsibility for any failure to report to the Disclosure Dissemination Agent a Notice Event or a duty to determine the materiality thereof, as to determine or liability for failing to determine whether the State has complied with the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, and the Disclosure Dissemination Agent may conclusively rely upon certification of the State at all times.

Any non-compliance with the Continuing Disclosure Agreement will not be a default or failure to comply for purposes of the default provisions of the Trust Agreement. The Trustee has no responsibility for monitoring compliance with the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.

The performance by the State, as the only obligated person with respect to the Bonds, of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement will be subject to the biennial appropriation by the General Assembly of moneys for that purpose.

The Continuing Disclosure Agreement will remain in effect for the Bonds only for such period that the Bonds are outstanding in accordance with their terms and the State remains an obligated person with respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule.

The State is in compliance with all of its prior continuing disclosure undertakings and the Rule.

CONCLUDING STATEMENT

Quotations in this Official Statement from, and summaries and explanations of, the Ohio Constitution, the Ohio Revised Code, the Trust Agreement, the Certificate and Agreement, the General Bond Order, and the Series 2007-1 Bond Order, do not purport to be complete. Reference is made to the pertinent provisions of the Ohio Constitution and Ohio Revised Code and those documents for complete statements of their provisions. Copies of the Trust Agreement and Certificate and Agreement are available upon request from the Treasurer, 30 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43266-0421 (Telephone: (614) 466-2160).

To the extent that any statements in this Official Statement involve matters of opinion or estimates, whether or not expressly stated to be such, those statements are made as such and not as representations of fact or certainty, and no representation is made that any of those statements will be realized. Information in this Official Statement has been derived by the State, the Treasurer and the Department from official and other sources and is believed by the State, the Treasurer and the Department to be reliable, but information other than that obtained from official records by the State has not been independently confirmed or verified by the State, the Treasurer or the Department and its accuracy is not guaranteed. This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or agreement between the State or the Treasurer or the Department and the Underwriters or subsequent Holders of any of the Bonds or owners of any interests therein.

This Official Statement has been prepared, approved, executed and delivered by the Treasurer of State of the State of Ohio in his official capacity.

STATE OF OHIO

/s/ Richard Cordray
Richard Cordray
Treasurer of State

GLOSSARY

When used herein the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below. The definitions set forth below are qualified in their entirety by reference to the Trust Agreement, the Eighth Supplemental Trust Agreement, and the Certificate and Agreement, copies of which are available from the Authority. Use of the singular includes plural and use of the plural includes singular, where applicable.

"Act" means Section 5531.10 of the Ohio Revised Code, together with the provisions of any act or resolution of the General Assembly authorizing or limiting the issuance of the Bonds or the uses of the proceeds of the Bonds.

"Additional Bonds" means any bonds or obligations issued pursuant to the Act except the Bonds.

"Administrative Expenses" means the administrative fees and expenses and other fees, expenses and obligations, other than Bond Service Charges, incurred by the Treasurer and the Department in connection with Bonds and Additional Bonds, including without limitation, regular and special fees and reasonable expenses of the Trustee, Bond Registrars, Paying Agents, Authenticating Agents, Rating Agencies, tender agents, depositories, financial advisors, accounting experts, attorneys, and other consultants and independent contractors, including printing services incurred in connection with the issuance, carrying, securing, paying, redeeming or retirement of Bonds and Additional Bonds, including costs and expenses relating to letters of credit, lines of credit, insurance, put agreements, stand-by purchase agreements, remarketing and administrative agreements, interest swap or hedging agreements and related costs, and any other credit enhancement, liquidity, remarketing, renewal or refunding arrangements.

"Administrative Expense Fund" means the Major New State Infrastructure Project Administrative Expense Fund established by the Treasurer in the custody of the Trustee.

"Bond" or "Bonds" or "Series 2007-1 Bonds" means the \$210,000,000 State of Ohio Major New State Infrastructure Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2007-1.

"Bond Service Charges" means the principal, including any mandatory sinking fund requirements for retirement of Bonds and Additional Bonds, interest, and redemption premium, if any, required to be paid by the State on Bonds and Additional Bonds, or, as provided in the applicable Bond Proceedings, estimated to be paid by the State on Bonds and Additional Bonds.

"Book-Entry Interest Owner" means a person who is the owner of a beneficial interest in Bonds or Additional Bonds, and the right to Bond Service Charges, which are maintained in Book Entry Form.

"Business Day" means any day of the year, other than: (a) a Saturday; (b) a Sunday; (c) a legal holiday; (d) a day on which banking institutions located in the State are required or authorized by law to close; or (e) a day on which the Trustee or any applicable Paying Agent is unable to open or be open for reasons not related to its financial condition.

"Certificate and Agreement" means the Certificate and Agreement, dated as of November 1, 2007, between the Director of the Department and the Treasurer, as amended from time to time.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time. References to the Code and Sections of the Code include relevant applicable regulations (including temporary regulations thereunder), and any successor provisions to those Sections or regulations.

"Credit Support Instrument" means an insurance policy, letter of credit, line of credit or other credit enhancement, support or liquidity device provided pursuant to an agreement by any financial institution, insurance company or governmental official or body to enhance the security or liquidity of any

Bonds or Additional Bonds or series or part of any series of Bonds or Additional Bonds or to provide, in whole or in part, a required reserve in a bond service reserve account.

"Department" means the Ohio Department of Transportation, created by Section 121.02 of the Ohio Revised Code.

"Depository" means any Securities Depository, and, as to the Bonds, initially means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, a limited purpose trust company, and its nominee, CEDE & Co.

"Director" means that officer of the State, appointed pursuant to Section 121.03 of the Ohio Revised Code, who administers and is the executive head of the Department of Transportation created by Section 121.02 of the Ohio Revised Code or the officer who performs the functions of that office.

"Director of Budget and Management" means that officer of the State, appointed pursuant to Section 121.03 of the Ohio Revised Code, who administers and is the executive head of the Office of Budget and Management created by Section 121.02 of the Ohio Revised Code or the officer who performs the functions of that office.

"District Obligations" means bonds, notes, or other evidence of obligation including interest coupons pertaining thereto, issued to finance a qualified project by a transportation improvement district created pursuant to section 5540.02 of the Ohio Revised Code, of which the principal, including mandatory sinking fund requirements for retirement of such obligations, and interest and redemption premium, if any, are payable by the Department.

"Eligible Investments," unless otherwise provided in the applicable Series Bond Order, with respect to moneys held by the Treasurer, means any investment in which the Treasurer is authorized to invest by State law, and with respect to moneys held by the Trustee, means any of the following securities:

- (i) direct obligations of the United States of America;
- (ii) obligations, whether representing principal and interest or either principal or interest, guaranteed as to payment by the United States of America, or to the payment of which the faith of the United States of America is pledged;
- (iii) obligations issued by any agency or instrumentality of the United States of America which are accepted by Moody's and Standard & Poor's for refunding purposes generally, and that result in the particular refunded obligations being assigned the highest rating of Moody's and Standard & Poor's;
- (iv) general obligations of the State or any political subdivision of the State that are rated at one of the two highest ratings of Moody's and Standard & Poor's;
- (v) certificates of deposit, whether negotiable or non-negotiable, issued by a national bank located in the State or a bank (as defined in Section 1101.01 of the Ohio Revised Code) subject to inspection by the State Superintendent of Banks, which bank has a combined capital and surplus of at least One Hundred Million Dollars (\$100,000,000) in dollars of the United States of America and is rated at least "A" (or its equivalent) by Moody's and Standard & Poor's, provided, that such certificates of deposit (a) do not exceed in the aggregate ten percent (10%) of the combined capital, surplus and undivided profits of the issuing bank and (b) shall be in the possession of the Trustee or its agents and shall be either (A) continuously and fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or its successors and (B) to the extent not so insured, continuously and fully secured by securities ("Pledged Securities") as are described in clauses (i) through (iii),

inclusive, above, which shall have a market value (exclusive of any accrued interest) at all times at least equal to the principal amount of the certificates of deposit; and the bank issuing a certificate of deposit required to be secured as provided in clause (B) above shall furnish the Trustee with an undertaking satisfactory to it that the aggregate market value of all such Pledged Securities securing each certificate of deposit will at all times be an amount at least equal to the principal amount of each such certificate of deposit and the Trustee shall be entitled to rely on each such undertaking;

- (vi) any repurchase agreement for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days with any eligible institution described in clause (v) above having capital and surplus of at least One Hundred Million Dollars (\$100,000,000) in dollars of the United States of America and rated at least "A" (or its equivalent) by Moody's and Standard & Poor's and described in Section 135.03 of the Ohio Revised Code that is fully and continuously collateralized at all times by interest bearing Pledged Securities based upon the market value of such Pledged Securities; and
- (vii) any no front end load money market fund that is rated at least "A" (or its equivalent) by Moody's and Standard & Poor's invested solely in obligations described in clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) above;

provided that for the purposes of clauses (v) and (vi) the respective Pledged Securities are to be in the possession of the Trustee or the Trustee's agent and are to be free and clear of all liens or rights of any third party, and in which obligations the Trustee is to have a first perfected security interest.

"Event of Default" means:

- (a) Default in the payment of any interest on any Bond or Additional Bond when due and payable;
- (b) Default in the payment of the principal of or any redemption premium on any Bond or Additional Bond when due and payable, whether at stated maturity or by mandatory redemption;
- (c) Any other default, and the continuance thereof for a period of 60 days after written notice of such default is given to the Treasurer by the Trustee or the Holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of affected Bonds and Additional Bonds then outstanding.

"Federal Fiscal Year" means a period of twelve consecutive months commencing on the first day of October of any year and ending on the last day of September of the following year, or such other period of twelve consecutive months as may by law be designated as the Federal Fiscal Year for general federal fiscal purposes.

"Federal Highway Receipts" means all moneys apportioned by the Secretary of Transportation under the provisions of Title 23 of the United States Code, as amended, or any successor legislation, or any other federal law relating to federal aid for highways.

"Fitch Ratings" means Fitch Ratings, a subsidiary of Fimalac, S.A., and its successors and assigns.

"General Assembly" means the body in which the legislative power of the State is vested.

"General Bond Order" means the General Bond Order of the Treasurer, as the same may be amended from time to time in accordance with its provisions or the provisions of the Trust Agreement.

"Holder" or "Holder of Bonds" or any similar term, means any person in whose name a Bond or Additional Bond is registered on the Register.

"Insured Bonds" means the Bonds, except for Bonds maturing on June 15, 2012 through June 15, 2017.

"Interest Payment Date" means, as to the Bonds, the 15th day of June and the 15th day of December in each year, commencing June 15, 2008.

"Major New Project Debt Service Account" means the account created by the Treasurer in the custody of the Trustee pursuant to Section 7 of the General Bond Order.

"Major New State Infrastructure Project" means a State Infrastructure Project described in a Certificate and Agreement.

"Moody's" means Moody's Investors Service, Inc., a Delaware corporation, its successors and assigns.

"Ninth Supplemental Trust Agreement" means the proposed Ninth Supplemental Trust Agreement between the State and the Trustee amending the definition of Pledged Federal Highway Receipts. See "THE TRUST AGREEMENT - Amendments to the General Bond Order and Trust Agreement."

"Obligations" means Bonds, Additional Bonds, notes or other evidence of obligation, including coupons pertaining thereto, issued pursuant to the Act to pay costs of State Infrastructure Projects.

"Original Trust Agreement" means the Trust Agreement, dated as of May 1, 1998, by and between the Treasurer and the Trustee as amended from time to time.

"Parity Obligations" means any obligation, other than the Bonds and Additional Bonds, of any person which is payable from, or the security for which is, Pledged Federal Highway Receipts and which obligation is not expressly by its terms subordinated to the Bonds and Additional Bonds.

"Paying Agent" means the Trustee, and any other bank, trust company or financial institution or the Treasurer, designated as additional paying agents or places of payment of Bond Service Charges or specified Bond Service Charges on Bonds of a series by or pursuant to the Series Bond Order authorizing that series of Bonds, and their successors designated pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

"Pledged Federal Highway Receipts" means all moneys apportioned by the Secretary of Transportation under the provisions of Title 23 of the United States Code, as amended, or any successor legislation, or any other federal law relating to federal aid for highways and to be received as a grant by the State, to the extent that the State is not prohibited by federal or State law from using such moneys to pay Bond Service Charges. Upon issuance of the Bonds and the execution of the Ninth Supplemental Trust Agreement, moneys on deposit in the State Infrastructure Bank constituting moneys received as debt service payments or other repayments in respect of loans from the State Infrastructure Bank shall be excluded from Pledged Federal Highway Receipts.

"Pledged Receipts" means (a) accrued interest received from the sale of Obligations; (b) all amounts standing to the credit of the State Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bond Service Fund including without limitation all amounts credited to the Major New Project Debt Service Account and any other accounts and subaccounts in the State Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bond Service Fund, other than amounts in an account or subaccount which are limited to certain series of Bonds or Parity Obligations and other than any moneys in the State Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bond Service Fund raised by taxation by the State; (c) any gifts, grants, donations and pledges, and receipts therefrom, received by the State available for the payment of Bond Service Charges, to the extent not previously pledged and to the extent not prohibited by the terms of such gifts, grants donations or pledges; (d) any amounts on deposit

in the State Infrastructure Bank created pursuant to Section 5531.09 of the Ohio Revised Code constituting Pledged Federal Highway Receipts, excepting the portion thereof to be deposited in the Administrative Expense Fund, the Infrastructure Bank Obligations Fund, the Rebate Fund or an account or subaccount created pursuant to Section 9 of the General Bond Order, as provided therein or in any Series Bond Order; (e) other amounts in the State Infrastructure Bank which are hereafter pledged to the payment of Bond Service Charges by a Series Bond Order; and (f) any other moneys accruing to the State from sources described in Section 5531.10(A)(6) of the Ohio Revised Code, which are hereafter pledged to the payment of Bond Service Charges by a Series Bond Order. If the amounts standing to the credit of the State Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bond Service Fund and monies in the State Infrastructure Bank pledged to the payment of Bond Service Charges are insufficient for the payment of Bond Service Charges, "Pledged Receipts" also means all other Pledged Federal Highway Receipts, excepting the portion thereof to be deposited in the Infrastructure Bank Obligations Fund or an account or subaccount created pursuant to Section 9 of the General Bond Order, as provided therein or in any Series Bond Order.

"Rebate Fund" means the Major New State Infrastructure Project Rebate Fund established by the Treasurer in the custody of the Trustee pursuant to Section 11 of the General Bond Order.

"Regular Record Date" means, with respect to any Bond or Additional Bond and unless otherwise provided in the Series Bond Order authorizing the particular series of Bonds or Additional Bonds, the first day of the calendar month in which an Interest Payment Date applicable to the Bond occurs.

"Register" means the books kept and maintained by the Bond Registrar for registration and transfer of Bonds and Additional Bonds pursuant to Section 2.04 of the Original Trust Agreement.

"Registrar" means the Bond Registrar appointed under the Trust Agreement, presently U.S. Bank National Association.

"Rule" means Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time, promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended from time to time.

"Securities Depository" means any securities depository that is a clearing agency under federal law operating and maintaining, with its participants or otherwise, a system to record the beneficial ownership of Bonds or right to Bond Service Charges and to effect transfers of Bonds in Book Entry Form.

"Series 1998-1 Bonds" means the \$70,000,000 State of Ohio Major New State Infrastructure Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1998-1.

"Series 1999-1 Bonds" means the \$20,000,000 State of Ohio Major New State Infrastructure Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1999-1.

"Series 2001-1 Bonds" means the \$100,000,000 State of Ohio Major New State Infrastructure Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2001-1.

"Series 2002-1 Bonds" means the \$135,000,000 State of Ohio Major New State Infrastructure Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2002-1.

"Series 2003-1 Bonds" means the \$113,765,000 State of Ohio Major New State Infrastructure Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2003-1.

"Series 2005-1 Bonds" means the \$99,270,000 State of Ohio Major New State Infrastructure Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2005-1.

"Series 2006-1 Bonds" means the \$180,000,000 State of Ohio Major New State Infrastructure Revenue Bonds, Series 2006-1.

"Series Bond Order" means an order of the Treasurer authorizing the issuance of a series of Bonds or Additional Bonds in accordance with the General Bond Order, and particularly Section 4 thereof, and includes any order providing for the award, sale, terms or forms of Bonds or Additional Bonds authorized by a Series Bond Order.

"Special Record Date" means, with respect to any Bond and unless otherwise provided in the applicable Series Bond Order, the date established by the Trustee in connection with the payment of overdue interest on that Bond pursuant to the General Bond Order.

"Standard & Poor's" means Standard & Poor's, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., and its successors and assigns.

"State" means the State of Ohio.

"State Fiscal Year" means a period of twelve consecutive months commencing on the first day of July of any year and ending on the last day of June of the following year, or such other period of twelve consecutive months as may by law be designated as the State Fiscal Year for general State fiscal purposes.

"State Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bond Service Fund" means such fund as defined in Section 5531.10(R) of the Ohio Revised Code.

"State Infrastructure Project" means such a project as defined in Section 5531.10(A)(8) of the Ohio Revised Code.

"Supplemental Trust Agreement" means any trust agreement supplementing the Original Trust Agreement and entered into pursuant to the terms of the Original Trust Agreement as amended from time to time, and includes the applicable Series Bond Order.

"Tenth Supplemental Trust Agreement" means the Tenth Supplemental Trust Agreement, dated as of November 1, 2007, between the State and the Trustee, as amended from time to time.

"Treasurer" means the Treasurer of State of the State of Ohio, elected pursuant to Section 113.01 of the Ohio Revised Code, or the officer who by law performs the functions of that office.

"Trust Agreement" means the Original Trust Agreement, as amended, and the Tenth Supplemental Trust Agreement, including the General Bond Order and Series Bond Order No. 2007-1.

"Trustee" means the Trustee at the time serving under the Trust Agreement, presently U.S. Bank National Association, and any successor Trustee as determined or appointed under or pursuant to Section 6.03 or Section 6.06 of the Original Trust Agreement.

"Underwriters" means the original purchasers of the Bonds as stated in the Bond Purchase Agreement (as defined in the Trust Agreement).

APPENDIX A - FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION

November, 2007

State of Ohio Treasurer of State Columbus, Ohio

State of Ohio Director of Transportation Columbus, Ohio

U.S. Bank National Association, Trustee Columbus, Ohio

UBS Securities LLC as Representative of the Underwriters

We have examined the certified transcript of proceedings (the "Transcript") relating to the issuance by the State of Ohio (the "Issuer"), acting by and through its Treasurer of State (the "Treasurer"), of its \$210,000,000 State of Ohio Major New State Infrastructure Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2007-1 (the "Bonds"). The Bonds are being issued pursuant to the provisions of Section 5531.10 of the Ohio Revised Code (the "Act") for the purposes described in the Trust Agreement between the Issuer and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (the "Trustee"), dated as of May 1, 1998, as amended, and as supplemented by the Tenth Supplemental Trust Agreement between the Issuer and the Trustee, dated as of November 1, 2007 (collectively, the "Trust Agreement"). The Ohio Director of Transportation (the "Director") has entered into a Certificate and Agreement with the Treasurer (the "Certificate and Agreement") pursuant to which the Ohio Department of Transportation (the "Department") has agreed to make deposits with the Treasurer equal to the Bond Service Charges on the Bonds plus certain related costs. The documents in the Transcript examined include executed counterparts of the following: (i) the Certificate and Agreement and (ii) the Trust Agreement. We have also examined a copy of a fully registered, executed and authenticated Bond, certified by the Trustee to be a true copy of the lowestnumbered Bond authenticated. Unless otherwise defined herein, each of the capitalized terms used herein as a defined term shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Trust Agreement.

Based on this examination, we are of the opinion that, as of the date hereof, under existing Federal and State of Ohio statutes, as now judicially construed, together with existing regulations, rulings and court decisions:

- 1. The Bonds, the Certificate and Agreement and the Trust Agreement have been duly and validly authorized, executed and delivered by the Treasurer, and are legal, valid, binding and enforceable against the Issuer in accordance with their respective terms. Pursuant to the Certificate and Agreement, the Department has agreed to make payments to the Treasurer sufficient to pay the Bond Service Charges on the Bonds from funds appropriated to the Department for that purpose by the Ohio General Assembly; the agreement of the Department to make those payments during any two-year period for which appropriations may lawfully be made by the Ohio General Assembly is effective and binding upon the Department only when and to the extent that funds have been appropriated and are available for that purpose and for that period; and the Ohio General Assembly is not at any time obligated to make appropriations to pay those amounts.
- 2. The Bonds constitute special obligations of the Issuer, and the Bond Service Charges thereon are payable from, and secured under the Trust Agreement solely by, the Pledged Receipts pledged and assigned by the Trust Agreement to secure that payment. Those Pledged Receipts include (a) accrued

interest received from the sale of the Bonds; (b) all amounts standing to the credit of the State Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bond Service Fund, other than amounts which are limited to a certain series of bonds and other than any monies therein raised by taxation by the State of Ohio; (c) any gifts, grants, donations and pledges, and receipts therefrom received by the State available for the payment of Bond Service Charges, to the extent not previously pledged and to the extent not prohibited; (d) any amounts on deposit in the State Infrastructure Bank created pursuant to Section 5531.09 of the Ohio Revised Code constituting Pledged Federal Highway Receipts (as hereinafter defined) (excepting portions thereof designated for payment of certain expenses or limited to a certain series of bonds); and (e) any other monies accruing to the State hereafter pledged to the payment of Bond Service Charges pursuant to the Act. If the amounts standing to the credit of the State Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bond Service Fund and monies in the State Infrastructure Bank pledged to the payment of Bond Service Charges are insufficient for the payment of Bond Service Charges, "Pledged Receipts" also means all moneys apportioned as a grant to the State by the United States Secretary of Transportation under Title 23 of the United States Code, or any successor legislation, or any other federal law relating to federal aid for highways, which are lawfully available to pay Bond Service Charges (the "Pledged Federal Highway Receipts") (excepting portions thereof designated for payment of certain other expenses or limited to a certain series of bonds and excepting certain moneys on deposit in the State Infrastructure Bank constituting moneys received as debt service payments or other repayments in respect of loans from the State Infrastructure Bank). The Bonds and the payment of debt service are not secured by an obligation or pledge of any moneys raised by taxation and the Bonds do not represent or constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the Issuer, the Treasurer or the Department. We express no opinion as to the Statement of Insurance on the Bonds or as to the insurance referred to therein.

- 3. The interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and is not treated as a specific item of tax preference for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations by Section 55 of the Code.
- 4. Interest on, the transfer of, and any profit made on the sale, exchange, or other disposition of the Bonds are exempt from the Ohio personal income tax, the Ohio corporation franchise tax (to the extent calculated on the net income basis), and from income taxes imposed by municipalities and other political subdivisions in Ohio (Interest on the Bonds, as is the case with most other forms of interest on debt obligations, is not subject to the Ohio commercial activity tax).
- 5. Portions of the interest on the Bonds earned by corporations (as defined for federal income tax purposes) may be subject to the corporate alternative minimum tax that is imposed under the Code on a portion of the excess of the corporation's adjusted current earnings over its other alternative minimum taxable income. In addition, interest on the Bonds may be subject to the branch profits tax imposed under Section 884 of the Code on certain foreign corporations doing business in the United States and to the tax imposed on the excess net passive income of certain S corporations under Section 1375 of the Code

In giving the foregoing opinion with respect to the treatment of the interest on the Bonds and the status of the Bonds under the federal tax laws, we have assumed and relied upon compliance with the Issuer's covenants and the accuracy of the Issuer's representations and certifications contained in the Transcript. The accuracy of those representations and certifications, which we have not independently verified, and the Issuer's compliance with those covenants, may be necessary for the interest on the Bonds to be and remain excludable from gross income and for the other tax effects stated above. Failure to comply with certain requirements subsequent to issuance of the Bonds could cause interest thereon to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes, in some cases retroactively to the date of issuance of the Bonds.

We have assumed for purposes of this opinion the due authorization, execution and delivery by, and the binding effect upon and enforceability against, the Trustee of the documents to which it is a party.

Very truly yours,

APPENDIX B - BOOK-ENTRY FORM

The information in this section concerning The Depository Trust Company ("DTC") and DTC's bookentry only system has been obtained from DTC, and the Treasurer, the State, the Department, the Underwriters and the Trustee take no responsibility for the completeness or accuracy thereof. The Treasurer, the State, the Underwriters and the Trustee cannot and do not give any assurances that DTC, Direct Participants or Indirect Participants will distribute to the Beneficial Owners (a) payments of interest or principal with respect to the Bonds, (b) certificates representing ownership interests in or other confirmation or ownership interests in the Bonds, or (c) redemption or other notices sent to DTC or Cede & Co., its partnership nominee, as the registered owner of the Bonds, or that they will so do on a timely basis or that DTC, Direct Participants or Indirect Participants will act in the manner described in this Official Statement. The current "Rules" applicable to DTC are on file with the SEC and the current "Procedures" of DTC to be followed in dealing with DTC Participants are on file with DTC.

DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity and interest rate of the Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity and interest rate, and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world's largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 2.2 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments from over 100 countries that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC, in turn, is owned by a number of Direct Participants of DTC and Members of the National Securities Clearing Corporation, Fixed Income Clearing Corporation and Emerging Markets Clearing Corporation, (NSCC, FICC and EMCC, also subsidiaries of DTCC), as well as by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange, LLC, and the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). DTC has Standard & Poor's highest rating: AAA. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtc.org and www.dtcc.com.

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond ("Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in the Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose

accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Bonds. For example, Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the Bond Registrar and request that copies of the notices be provided directly to them.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds within a maturity are being redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in the Bonds to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's Procedures. Under its usual Procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the State as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Redemption proceeds, distributions and dividend payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct Participants' accounts, upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the State or the Bond Registrar, on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC (nor its nominee), the Bond Registrar, or the State, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions and dividends to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the Treasurer or the Bond Registrar, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of DTC, and Indirect Participants.

Revision of Book-Entry System; Replacement Bonds

The Supplemental Trust Agreement provides for the physical delivery of fully registered Bonds ("Replacement Bonds") directly to Holders, other than DTC, of Bonds in the event that DTC determines not to continue to act as securities depository for the Bonds. Upon the occurrence of such an event with respect to the Bonds, the Treasurer may, in its discretion, attempt to have established a securities depository/book-entry relationship with another qualified securities depository for the Bonds. If the Treasurer does not, or is unable to, establish such a relationship and after the Trustee has made provisions for notification of the Book-Entry Interest Owners of the affected Bonds by appropriate notice to DTC, the Trustee will authenticate and deliver the Replacement Bonds in the denomination of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof to or at the direction of, and, if the event is not the result of the Treasurer's action or inaction, at the expense (including printing costs) of, DTC's assigns.

Bond Service Charges on the Replacement Bonds will be payable when due without deduction for the services of the applicable paying agent. Principal of and premium, if any, on any Replacement Bonds will be payable to the Holder thereof upon presentation and surrender thereof at the designated corporate trust office of the Trustee. Interest thereon will be payable by the Trustee by check or draft, mailed to the Holder of record on the Bond Register maintained by the Trustee as of the first day of the calendar month in which the Interest Payment Date occurs.

Replacement Bonds will be exchangeable for Replacement Bonds of authorized denominations, and transferable, at the office of the Trustee without charge (except taxes or other governmental fees).

Transfer of Book-Entry Interest in Bonds

The rights of Book-Entry Interest Owners in the Bonds and the manner of transferring or pledging those interests is subject to applicable state law. Book-Entry Interest Owners in the Bonds may wish to discuss the manner of transferring or pledging their book-entry interests in such Bonds with their legal advisors.



APPENDIX C - SPECIMEN OF MUNICIPAL BOND POLICY





PSA FSA FSA

F 4 /4

E5A

154

PAA

MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE POLICY

ISSUER:

BONDS

L'SA

F 6 3

VSJ

VSA FSA VSA

1/5-1

F54

\$ 5. H

V54 V54

Policy No.: -N
Effective Date:

Premium: \$

FINANCIAL SECURITY ASSURANCE INC. ("Financial Security"), for consideration received, hereby UNCONDITIONALLY AND IRREVOCABLY agrees to pay to the trustee (the "Trustee") or paying agent (the "Paying Agent") (as set forth in the documentation providing for the issuance of and securing the Bonds) for the Bonds, for the benefit of the Owners or, at the election of Financial Security, directly to each Owner, subject only to the terms of this Policy (which includes each endorsement hereto), that portion of the principal of and interest on the Bonds that shall become Due for Payment but shall be unpaid by reason of Nonpayment by the Issuer.

On the later of the day on which such principal and interest becomes Due for Payment or the Business Day next following the Business Day on which Financial Security shall have received Notice of Nonpayment, Financial Security will disburse to or for the benefit of each Owner of a Bond the face amount of principal of and interest on the Bond that is then Due for Payment but is then unpaid by reason of Nonpayment by the Issuer, but only upon receipt by Financial Security, in a form reasonably satisfactory to it, of (a) evidence of the Owner's right to receive payment of the principal or interest then Due for Payment and (b) evidence, including any appropriate instruments of assignment, that all of the Owner's rights with respect to payment of such principal or interest that is Due for Payment shall thereupon vest in Financial Security. A Notice of Nonpayment will be deemed received on a given Business Day if it is received prior to 1:00 p.m. (New York time) on such Business Day, otherwise, it will be deemed received on the next Business Day. If any Notice of Nonpayment received by Financial Security is incomplete, it shall be deemed not to have been received by Financial Security for purposes of the preceding sentence and Financial Security shall promptly so advise the Trustee, Paying Agent or Owner, as appropriate, who may submit an amended Notice of Nonpayment. Upon disbursement in respect of a Bond, Financial Security shall become the owner of the Bond, any appurtenant coupon to the Bond or right to receipt of payment of principal of or interest on the Bond and shall be fully subrogated to the rights of the Owner, including the Owner's right to receive payments under the Bond, to the extent of any payment by Financial Security hereunder. Payment by Financial Security to the Trustee or Paying Agent for the benefit of the Owner's right to the extent thereof, discharge the obligation of Financial Security under this Policy.

Except to the extent expressly modified by an endorsement hereto, the following terms shall have the meanings specified for all purposes of this Policy. "Business Day" means any day other than (a) a Saturday or Sunday or (b) a day on which banking institutions in the State of New York or the Insurer's Fiscal Agent are authorized or required by law or executive order to remain closed. "Due for Payment" means (a) when referring to the principal of a Bond, payable on the stated maturity date thereof or the date on which the same shall have been duly called for mandatory sinking fund redemption and does not refer to any earlier date on which payment is due by reason of call for redemption (other than by mandatory sinking fund redemption), acceleration or other advancement of maturity unless Financial Security shall elect, in its sole discretion, to pay such principal due upon such acceleration together with any accrued interest to the date of acceleration and (b) when referring to interest on a Bond, payable on the stated date for payment of interest. "Nonpayment" means, in respect of a Bond, the failure of the Issuer to have provided sufficient funds to the Trustee or, if there is no Trustee, to the Paying Agent for payment in full of all principal and interest that is Due for Payment on such Bond. "Nonpayment" shall also include, in respect of a Bond, any payment of principal or interest that is Due for Payment

VSH

V8.

VSI

T 1

Page 2 of 2 Policy No. -N made to an Owner by or on behalf of the Issuer which has been recovered from such Owner pursuant to the United States Bankruptcy Code by a trustee in bankruptcy in accordance with a final, nonappealable order of a court having competent jurisdiction. "Notice" means telephonic or telecopied notice, subsequently confirmed in a signed writing, or written notice by registered or certified mail, from an Owher, the Trustee or the Paying Agent to Financial Security which notice shall specify (a) the person or entity making the claim, (b) the Policy Number, (c) the claimed amount and (d) the date such claimed amount became Due for Payment. "Owner" means, in respect of a Bond, the person or entity who, at the time of Nonpayment, is entitled under the terms of such Bond to payment thereof, except that "Owner" shall not include the Issuer or any person or entity whose direct or indirect obligation constitutes the underlying security for the Bonds. Financial Security may appoint a fiscal agent (the "Insurer's Fiscal Agent") for purposes of this Policy by giving written notice to the Trustee and the Paying Agent specifying the name and notice address of the Insurer's Fiscal Agent. From and after the date of receipt of such notice by the Trustee and the Paying Agent, (a) copies of all notices required to be delivered to Financial Security pursuant to this Policy shall be simultaneously delivered to the Insurer's Fiscal Agent and to Financial Security and shall not be deemed received until received by both and (b) all payments required to be made by Financial Security under this Policy may be made directly by Financial Security or by the Insurer's Fiscal Agent on behalf of Financial Security. The Insurer's Fiscal Agent is the agent of Financial Security only and the Insurer's Fiscal Agent shall in no event be liable to any Owner for any act of the Insurer's Fiscal Agent or any failure of Financial Security to deposit or cause to be deposited sufficient funds to make payments due under this Policy. HS A VSI 116.3 VSJ To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, Financial Security agrees not to assert, and hereby waives, only for the benefit of each Owner, all rights (whether by counterclaim, setoff or otherwise) and defenses (including without limitation, the defense of fraud), whether acquired by subrogation, assignment VSH or otherwise, to the extent that such rights and defenses may be available to Financial Security to avoid payment of its obligations under this Policy in accordance with the express provisions of this Policy. This Policy sets forth in full the undertaking of Financial Security, and shall not be modified, altered or affected by any other agreement or instrument, including any modification or amendment thereto. Except to the extent expressly modified by an endorsement hereto, (a) any premium paid in respect of this Policy is negreturable for any increase with a constitution of the policy. is nonrefundable for any reason whatsoever, including payment, or provision being made for payment, of the Bonds prior to maturity and (b) this Policy may not be canceled or revoked. THIS POLICY IS NOT COVERED BY THE PROPERTY/CASUALTY INSURANCE SECURITY FUND SPECIFIED IN ARTICLE 76 OF THE NEW YORK INSURANCE LAW. In witness whereof, FINANCIAL SECURITY ASSURANCE INC. has caused this Policy to be executed on its behalf by its Authorized Officer. 194 154 [Countersignature] FINANCIAL SECURITY ASSURANCE INC. Bγ **Authorized Officer** subsidiary of Financial Security Assurance Holdings Ltd. 1 West 52nd Street, New York, N.Y. 10019 (212) 826-0100 Form 500NY (5/90) 1/51 V N. I VAH





